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The mission of the Prepaid College Plan is to offer a simple,
convenient, safe and efficient college savings program that will:

e Make a college education more accessible and affordable
to more West Virginians

e Encourage more families to save ahead for the costs of
college

e Promote attendance at West Virginia’s public and private
institutions of higher learning

e Establish college attendance as the norm for more of
West Virginia’s youth

e Express the quality, user-friendliness, professionalism
and innovation inherent in the Treasurer’s Office.
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State of West Virginia

OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER
CHARLESTON, WV 25305

John D. Perdue
State Treasurer

Danny Ellis
Assistant State Treasurer

The Honorable Members of the Legislature
The Members of the Board of Trustees of the
West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
The Prepaid Tuition Plan Contract Holders
The Savings Plan Participants
Citizens of West Virginia:

| am pleased to provide you with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (the “CAFR”) of
the West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program for the year ended June 30,
2013. The financial statements contained herein have been audited by an independent certified
public accounting firm.

The CAFR exemplifies the Office of the State Treasurer’s commitment to financial
accountability and adheres to nationally recognized standards. The Program is committed to
providing a safe and secure means for making college costs affordable. The CAFR is designed
to provide the reader with clear, concise and complete financial data.

This report is made possible through the efforts of many people throughout the Treasurer’s
Office dedicated to providing reliable and credible financial information in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Their commitment and dedication
to national reporting standards have resulted in the Program’s achievement of a high level of
financial accountability.

Sincerely,

91.9_ Forclice

John D. Perdue



(This page intentionally left blank.)



West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Table of Contents

Introductory Section

Letter Of TranSMITEAL ........c.ooieiiee et e e nne e enes 9
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting..........cccccvvvevviieieeincieennn, 15
OrganizationNal CNAIT..........c.oiiiiiiiei et sb bbb ne s 16
PriNCIPal OFFICIAIS .....cveeiecc et enre s 17

Independent AUAITOrS’ REPOI.... ..o 21
Management’s Discussion and ANALYSIS ......c.coceeieiiiieiiieiie e 25
Basic Financial Statements:

Enterprise Funds:

Statement of Net (DefiCit) POSITION .........coviiiiiiiiie e 32
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net (Deficit) Position...................... 33
Statement 0f Cash FIOWS........ccviiriieeee e 34
Fiduciary Fund:
Statement of Fiduciary Net POSITION .........cooiiiiiiiiie e 36
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net POSItION..........c.cccovieieiieiiec e 37
Notes to Financial StAtEMENTS..........c.oiveiiiieiiee e ens 39
Supplemental Information:
Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position — Savings Plan Trust FUNd ...........ccccooiiiiiiiienenn, 61
Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — Savings Plan Trust Fund ..................... 70
Financial Highlights — Savings Plan Trust FUNd ..o 84

Statistical Section

Table 1 — Net (Deficit) Position and Changes in Net (Deficit) Position, Enterprise Funds...... 108
Table 2 — Changes in Net Position, Fiduciary FUNG ............ccoooiiiiiiniic s 110
Table 3 — Types of Prepaid Tuition Plan CoNtracts...........cccocveiiiiiieiie e 112

(Continued on next page)



Table of Contents (Continued)

Table 4 — Prepaid Tuition Plan BENefiCIAries ........ccccvcvueiieiviieiiese e 113
Table 5 — Prepaid Tuition Plan STUAENTS..........coiiiiiiiece s 114
Table 6 — Tuition and Mandatory FEES ........ccviiiiieii e 115
Table 7 — Resident Full-time Undergraduate Enrollment............cccooeiiiiinnieeeeees 116
Table 8 — Savings Plan INvestment OPLiONS .........cccoviieiieiieiieciese e 117
Table 9 — Savings Plan Top TN FIrMS........ooiiiiiiiees e 118
Table 10 — Savings Plan TOP TN StAteS .......cccceieeiiiie e 119



Introductory Section

Letter of Transmittal

Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial
Reporting

Organizational Chart

Principal Officials




(This page intentionally left blank.)



SMARTIT 529

WEST VIRGINIA'S COLLEGE SAVINGS SOLUTION

December 23, 2013

Honorable John D. Perdue, State Treasurer
Office of the State Treasurer

Honorable Members of the West Virginia Legislature

Board of Trustees
West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Contract Holders of the Prepaid Tuition Plan
Participants in the Savings Plan

Citizens of West Virginia

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) of the West Virginia College Prepaid
Tuition and Savings Program (the “Program”) for the year ended June 30, 2013, is hereby
respectfully submitted. This report was prepared by the Office of the Financial Director of the
Program. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management of the Program. We
believe the information, as presented, is accurate in all material respects, and that it is presented
in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position of the enterprise funds and fiduciary
fund of the Program and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows where
applicable. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
Program’s financial activities have been included.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure
that the assets of the Program are protected from loss, theft or misuse and that the preparation of
the financial statements is in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from it, and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Management

John D. Perdue, State Treasurer

Office of the State Treasurer - 1900 Kanawha Blvd. East, Charleston WV 25305 - 304-558-5000 - FAX 304-558-4177
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of the Program has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to
provide a reasonable basis for making representations concerning the finances of the Program.
Because the cost of internal control should not outweigh its benefits, the Program’s
comprehensive framework of internal control has been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The Program’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors in the financial section of this report.

Actuarial Soundness Review

The Program’s Prepaid Tuition Plan is required by Chapter 18, Article 30 of the West Virginia
Code to have an annual actuarial soundness review performed by a qualified actuary. The firm
Sherman Actuarial Services performed the review as of June 30, 2013. The report is available for
public distribution and may be obtained from the Program.

Audit

The Program is required by Chapter 18, Article 30 of the West Virginia Code to have an annual
audit by an independent certified public accounting firm. The firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP
performed the financial statement audit as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. The
auditors’ report on the Program’s financial statements is included in the financial section of this
report.

Profile of the Program

The Program operates under the West Virginia State Code Chapter 18, Article 30, West Virginia
College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program Act. This Act was formerly known as the West
Virginia Prepaid Tuition Trust Act until amended by the West Virginia Legislature on April 12,
2001. The State Treasurer under the direction of the nine-member West Virginia College
Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program Board of Trustees (the “Board”) administers the Program.

The purpose of the Program is to offer a Prepaid Tuition Trust Fund (the “Prepaid Tuition Plan™)
that provides individuals and organizations the opportunity to prepay tomorrow’s college tuition
and mandatory fees at West Virginia public and private colleges and universities, and to offer a
Savings Plan Trust Fund (the “Savings Plan™) that provides a means of saving to pay for the
variety of costs of attending college.

The Program began operating its Prepaid Tuition Plan in July 1997 with the initial enrollment
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period commencing on October 1, 1998 and ending January 31, 1999. Approximately 9,730
Prepaid Tuition Plan contracts have been sold. The Savings Plan opened in March 2002. More
than 157,000 Savings Plan accounts have been opened since inception through June 30, 2013.

As discussed in Note 9 in the Notes to Financial Statements, the West Virginia Legislature
closed the Prepaid Tuition Plan to new enrollment effective March 8, 2003 until the Legislature
authorizes the plan to reopen. Under State Code 818-30-6 (g), the Prepaid Tuition Plan will
continue in existence, and closing the plan to new contracts shall not affect any contracts in
effect on March 8, 2003. No Prepaid Tuition Plan contracts were sold in the year ended June 30,
2013.

The Program’s Board selected Hartford Life Insurance Company (“Hartford Life”) to provide
records administration, cash management, and customer service for both plans, and investment
management services for the Savings Plan. Both plans are known collectively as SMART529™
The College Savings Solution. The Program is an Internal Revenue Service Section 529
Qualified State Tuition Program. A more detailed description of the Program can be found in
Note 1 in the Notes to Financial Statements in the financial section of this CAFR.

Revenues of the Prepaid Tuition Plan are recognized primarily from the present value of prepaid
tuition contracts and from investment earnings. Expenses of the Prepaid Tuition Plan are for
tuition contract benefits and for general and administrative operating activities. Additions to the
Savings Plan come primarily from participant contributions and investment earnings; deductions
are primarily the result of participant withdrawals and administrative expenses. Sources of
revenue for operating the overall Program come from annual appropriations from the West
Virginia State Legislature and from fees charged to Program participants.

As detailed in Note 2 in the Notes to Financial Statements, the Office of the State Treasurer
includes appropriation requests for the Program in the State Treasurer’s budgetary schedule that
is submitted to the Secretary of the West Virginia Department of Administration each year. The
schedule is subject to annual budget review and approval by the West Virginia State Legislature.

Budgetary control is maintained through legislative appropriation and the Executive Branch
quarterly allotment process. Agencies submit budgetary requests to the State Department of
Administration, which compiles the Executive Budget on behalf of the Governor, who submits it
to the Legislature. After approval of the budget, the Department of Administration maintains
control over the spending patterns of the state at the activity level and by use of the quarterly
allotments. Annual appropriations are released for spending in quarterly installments or
allotments. The State Auditor exercises control over spending at the annual appropriation level.
All appropriations, except funds that are re-appropriated, expire 31 days after fiscal year end. All
re-appropriated funds are available, in the aggregate, on the first day of the fiscal year. The
State’s fiscal year is July 1 through June 30.

Financial Condition & Other Information

College costs continue to rise faster than general inflation as measured by the Consumer Price
Index. Average published tuition and fees at public four-year colleges and universities increased
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by 19% beyond the rate of inflation over the five years from 2003-04 to 2008-09, and by another
27% between 2008-09 and 2013-14, according to The College Board. The College Board, which
administers the Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT) college entrance exam, is a national nonprofit
membership association composed of more than 6,000 schools, colleges, universities, and other
educational organizations. While the Consumer Price Index increased 2.0% between July 1,
2012 and June 30, 2013, the Prepaid Tuition Plan’s weighted average benefit value for West
Virginia public college and university tuition and fees for state residents increased 6.5% from
school years 2012-13 to 2013-14. By comparison, the previous weighted average benefit value
also increased 6.5% from school years 2011-12 to 2012-13. According to The College Board,
average tuition and fees for in-state students at four-year public colleges and universities
increased 2.9% nationwide for the 2013-14 school year, and the increase was 3.5% for two-year
public institutions. Total costs including tuition, fees, room and board increased 3.2%
nationwide for in-state students attending four-year public institutions.

In the fall of 2012, approximately 56.4% of West Virginia high school students who graduated
from a state high school the prior spring continued their education at an institution of higher
education. This was a decrease below the rate of 57.9% in the fall of 2011.

The weighted average tuition for West Virginia public college and university tuition and fees for
state residents is $2,744 per semester for the 2013-14 school year, up from $2,576 for the prior
school year. The actuarially determined tuition contract benefits liability is based on the
weighted average tuition, current tuition value, estimated tuition growth, and the expected rate of
return on investments. Current tuition value, which is the benefit paid to beneficiaries attending
in-state private or out-of-state institutions, is $3,035 per semester for the 2013-14 school year, up
from $2,866 for the prior year. Tuition is assumed to grow 9.5% for the 2014-15 school year and
7.0% each year thereafter. An annual rate of return of 5.6% is assumed on Prepaid Tuition Plan
investments for Fiscal Years 2014 through 2017. Declining rates are assumed for each year
thereafter through 2021 when the rate is assumed to be 2.9%. The rate is then assumed to be
2.6% for fiscal year 2022 and thereafter. If any of those assumptions vary significantly from
actual results, the liability will change accordingly as well as the net assets deficiency. For
example, if tuition growth for the next year is more than the assumed 9.5%, the tuition contract
benefits liability will increase beyond actuarial expectations and the net assets deficiency will
increase accordingly. If the rate of return on investments is less than the assumed 5.6%, the
liability will increase beyond actuarial expectations as well as the net assets deficiency. In the
same manner, if the tuition growth assumption exceeds actual growth or if the rate of return
assumption is less than actual returns, the tuition contract benefits liability will decrease below
actuarial expectations as well as the net assets deficiency. See the MD&A in the financial
section of this report for a more detailed discussion about actuarial assumptions.

The Prepaid Tuition Plan’s investment portfolio had a total gain of 9.3% for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013, a gain of 2.3% for the prior year and a gain of 19.7% for the year ended June 30,
2011. The Prepaid Tuition Plan’s investment mix for most of the fiscal year was 46% equity
securities and 54% fixed income securities. The fiscal year was an up year for the Prepaid
Tuition Plan’s equity investments, with domestic stocks gaining 21.9% and international stocks
gaining 17.7%. The Prepaid Tuition Plan’s fixed income investments gained 0.5%.
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The Prepaid Tuition Plan has a net position deficiency—also referred to as an actuarial deficit or
unfunded liability—of $13.4 million at June 30, 2013. The deficiency was caused primarily by
large investment losses, unexpected tuition increases in prior years, and changes in actuarial
assumptions. The Prepaid Tuition Plan’s financial condition is dependent on its investment
earnings and adequate cash flows. As discussed in Note 9 in the Notes to the Financial
Statements in the financial section of this report, steps have been taken to ensure financial
stability, which includes closure of the plan to new enrollment and a pledge of funds from the
State to support payment of benefits. Management believes the Prepaid Tuition Plan will have
sufficient resources to meet its obligations as they become due.

The West Virginia Legislature established the Prepaid Tuition Escrow Account to be funded
from the state’s Unclaimed Property Trust Fund. The Escrow Account provides funding to
support the deficit in the Prepaid Tuition Trust Fund, and the annual transfer is triggered by the
actuarial unfunded liability at the end of the fiscal year. The Escrow Account is discussed
further in Note 9 in the Notes to Financial Statements in the Financial Section of this report.

Nearly all of the Savings Plan’s various investment options showed positive rates of return for
the fiscal year. Many rates were in the 20% range, with a high of 32.4%. This was the ninth
year for the Savings Plan. Contributions to the Savings Plan were 1.3% less this fiscal year than
last year. Investment gains this year in the Savings Plan were $220.6 million. There was a $7.3
million investment loss last fiscal year.

In January 2013, end-of-year individual account statements summarizing activity through
December 31, 2012, were mailed to all West Virginia Prepaid Tuition Plan and SMART529
College Savings Plan account owners.

The offering statement for the SMART529 WV Direct College Savings Plan was revised and
issued effective October 29, 2012 and mailed to all account owners. A supplement was issued to
the SMART529 WV Direct College Savings Plan offering statement effective on or about
December 31, 2012 announcing Hartford Investment Financial Services, LLC, will replace
Hartford Securities Distribution Company, Inc., as the principal underwriter and distributor for
the SMART529 WV Direct. In addition, the supplement described important changes to two
Underlying Funds- the Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund and the Vanguard
Institutional Total Stock Market Index Fund.

The offering statement for The Hartford SMART529 College Savings Plan was revised and
mailed to account owners on February 11, 2013. A supplement was issued to The Hartford
SMARTS529 offering statement on June 14, 2013 allowing financial intermediaries to maintain
accounts directly. The Hartford Investment Financial Services, LLC, the principal underwriter
and distributor for The Hartford SMART529, also changed its name to Hartford Funds
Distributors, LLC.

Cash Management

The West Virginia Investment Management Board, Hartford Life, and the Office of the State
Treasurer manage the Prepaid Tuition Plan’s cash and cash equivalents. Hartford Life and the
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Office of the State Treasurer manage the Savings Plan cash and cash equivalents.
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Program for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This was the
thirteenth consecutive year that the Program has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

Acknowledgments

The Program’s success would not be possible without the support and leadership of the State
Treasurer, the Legislature and the Program’s Board of Trustees. Their commitment and
dedication to providing an affordable higher education has provided the Program with a blueprint
for success. The Program’s staff, Hartford Life, and the staff of the Office of the State Treasurer
provided diligent and dedicated service in building the Program and establishing it as the
national model of achievement that it is today. The preparation of this report was accomplished
only through the many hours and long days of work generously given by Program staff and the
many hardworking individuals at Hartford Life who are essential for the success of this program.

Respectfully, | hereby submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the West Virginia
College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Sincerely,

Dot Forem

David S. Thomas, CPA
Financial Director
West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Organizational Chart
As of June 30, 2013
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Deloitte & Touche LLP

= Two Jericho Plaza
e OI e Jericho, NY 11753-1683
USA
Tel: +1516 918 7000
Fax: +1 516 827 3980

www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Charleston, West Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the
enterprise funds and the fiduciary fund of the West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and
Savings Program (the “Program”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, which
collectively comprise the Program’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the enterprise
funds and the fiduciary fund of the Program, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes
in financial position and respective cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis-of-Matter

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the financial statements of the enterprise
funds include investments valued at $76,701,343 (96.4% of total assets) as of June 30, 2013,
whose fair values have been estimated by management in the absence of readily determinable
fair values. Management’s estimates are based on valuations provided by the West Virginia
Investment Management Board (the “WVIMB”) as the fair value of the enterprise funds’
share of the WVIMB public investment pools in which the funds participate.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 25 through 31 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on any the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Program's basic financial statements. The Other Information listed in
the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analyses and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements of the Program.



The Other Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Other Information is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Introductory Section and Statistical Section, listed in the table of contents, has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

‘Dﬂin;m_q’ Tomehe LLP

December 23, 2013
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2013

As management of the West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program (the
“Program”), we offer readers of the financial statements of the Program this discussion and
analysis of the Program’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented in this section in conjunction with the
Program’s financial statements, including notes to the financial statements, which follow this
section.

Financial Highlights

Total net position of the Program’s two enterprise funds increased $2,996,665 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. The actuarially funded ratio of the Prepaid Tuition Trust Fund, which is the
primary enterprise fund for investing assets and paying benefits, was 85.4%. The actuarially
funded ratio represents the ability of assets to fund liabilities and is calculated by dividing assets
by liabilities. The ratio was 83.2% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The increase in net
position of the Prepaid Tuition Trust Fund was driven by better than expected investment returns
and less than expected growth in college tuition and fees.

The investment portfolio of the Program’s enterprise funds had a 9.3% gain for the fiscal year,
which followed on the heels of a 2.3% gain for the prior year and a 19.7% gain for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011.

Net position of the Program’s fiduciary fund increased $257,725,693 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013. The increase was driven by a $42,122,117 excess of contributions over
redemptions and a net investment gain of $220,571,591. Net position of the fiduciary fund
represents funds held in trust for individual investors, and, as such, is not available to support
operations of the enterprise funds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This report presents the operating results and financial status of the Program, which is composed
of two enterprise funds and a fiduciary fund. The enterprise funds are the Prepaid Tuition Trust
Fund (the “Prepaid Tuition Plan”) and the College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Administrative Account (the “Administrative Account”). The enterprise funds’ financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”) for governmental entities. The Program’s Savings Plan Trust Fund (the
“Savings Plan”), is a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) and also is reported using the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GAAP.
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The State of West Virginia reports the combined Prepaid Tuition Plan and Administrative
Account as enterprise funds of the Program and the Savings Plan as a fiduciary fund (private-
purpose trust fund) of the Program in its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”).
Enterprise fund reporting is used to report the functions of a governmental entity with business-
type activities in which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. Fiduciary fund
reporting is used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the governmental
entity, and those resources are not available to support operations of that entity.

The Statement of Net (Deficit) Assets presents information on the enterprise funds’ assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as either net position or net deficit. This
statement is categorized into current and non-current assets and liabilities. For purposes of the
financial statements, current assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities with immediate
liquidity or which are collectible or becoming due within 12 months of the statement’s date. The
plan’s net (deficit) position also represent the actuarially funded level of the plan, and, over time,
increases or decreases in net (deficit) position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
plan’s funded level or financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net (Deficit) Position reflects the
operating and non-operating revenues and expenses of the enterprise funds for the operating
year. Operating revenues primarily consist of tuition contracts with major sources of operating
expenses being tuition contract benefits and expenses and general and administrative expenses.
Nonoperating revenues primarily consist of investment earnings/losses and appropriations from
the State, which is the primary government.

The Statement of Cash Flows is presented on the direct method of reporting, which reflects the
enterprise funds’ cash flows from operating, noncapital financing, and investing activities. Cash
collections and payments are reflected in this statement to arrive at the net increase or decrease in
cash and cash equivalents for the year.

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position presents information on the fiduciary fund’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position held in trust for
individuals or organizations.

The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position reports the additions and deductions to the
fiduciary fund for the year. Additions are composed of contributions by investors in the Savings
Plan and net investment earnings. Deductions represent redemptions by investors and operating
expenses of the fund.
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Financial Analysis of the Prepaid Tuition Plan and Administrative Account

Net (deficit) position. The following are combined, condensed Statements of Net (Deficit)
Position of the enterprise funds, which are the Prepaid Tuition Plan and the Administrative
Account, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.

2013 2012

Current assets $ 2,298,033 $ 3,153,812
Noncurrent assets 77,228,061 78,601,260
Total assets 79,526,094 81,755,072
Current liabilities 15,713,755 14,883,647
Noncurrent liabilities 76,594,144 82,649,895
Total liabilities 92,307,899 97,533,542
Net position (deficit):

Restricted 575,354 480,762

Unrestricted (13,357,159) (16,259,232)
Total net deficit $(12,781,805) $ (15,778,470)

The net deficit decreased 19.0%, or $2,996,665. Net position is the excess of total assets over
total liabilities, and a net deficit occurs when liabilities exceed assets. While the actuarially
funded status (assets divided by liabilities) of total enterprise funds was 86.2% at June 30, 2013
and 83.8% at June 30, 2012, the funded status of the Prepaid Tuition Plan at June 30, 2013 and
2012, was 85.4% and 83.2%, respectively. The actuarially funded status represents the Prepaid
Tuition Plan’s ability to fund payment of its liabilities as of the date on which the value of the
assets and liabilities are measured. Actuarial funding ratios above 100.0% provide financial
support during down times in the economy and lower earnings levels from the Prepaid Tuition
Plan’s investment portfolio, and during brief periods of unexpectedly high increases in tuition
costs. As the funding ratio decreases, the funding soundness level decreases, and as the funding
ratio increases, the funding soundness level increases.

Current assets represent cash and cash equivalents and short-term receivables. Noncurrent assets
represent investments and long-term receivables. See Note 2 for a discussion of investments
being reported as noncurrent assets. Current liabilities represent short-term payables for
administrative expenses and contract benefits. Noncurrent liabilities represent long-term
payables for administrative expenses and contract benefits.

The increase in the net assets deficit and the decrease in total assets were the result primarily of
greater than expected investment earnings during fiscal year 2013 and lower than expected
growth of tuition and fees for the 2014-15 academic year. The Prepaid Tuition Plan’s investment
portfolio earned a gain of 9.3% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, as compared to an
anticipated 6.1%. There was an investment gain of 2.3% for the prior year. The actuarially
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expected rate of tuition and fee growth for the 2013-14 academic year was 9.5%, but actual
growth was 6.5%, which resulted in an actuarial gain in net position.

Changes in net (deficit) position. The following are condensed Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net (Deficit) Position of the enterprise funds for the years ended June
30, 2013 and 2012.

Year Ended June 30,

2013 2012
Revenues
Operating revenues:
Tuition contracts (See Note 5) $ 41,894 $ 85,135
Savings Plan administrative fee 1,092,546 1,015,893
1,134,440 1,101,028
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment gain 6,781,671 1,633,476
Appropriations from primary government 147,045 147,163
6,928,716 1,780,639
Total revenues 8,063,156 2,881,667
EXxpenses
Operating expenses:
Tuition contract benefits and expenses (See Note 5) 3,834,357 5,968,409
General and administrative expenses 1,232,134 1,152,644
Total expenses 5,066,491 7,121,053
Change in net assets 2,996,665 (4,239,386)
Net deficit at beginning of year (15,778,470) (11,539,084)
Net deficit at end of year $(12,781,805) $ (15,778,470)

Operating revenues for the Prepaid Tuition Plan reflect the interest effect of discounting future
contract payments receivable and include an administrative fee received from the administrators
of the Savings Plan and deposited into the Program’s Administrative Account. As discussed in
Note 9 to these financial statements, during fiscal year 2003 the West Virginia Legislature closed
the Prepaid Tuition Plan to new enrollment until the Legislature authorizes the plan to reopen.
Because of the closure, no new prepaid tuition contracts were sold during fiscal years 2012 and
2013. Nonoperating revenues represent investment earnings, appropriations from the primary
government, and payments made by the primary government for other postemployment benefits
premiums on behalf of the Prepaid Tuition Plan. Investment gains for fiscal year 2013 were
$6,781,671 and the rate of return was 9.3%. For fiscal year 2012, the rate of return was 2.3%,
resulting in an investment gain of $1,633,476 for that year. The Prepaid Tuition Plan’s finances
are structured such that investment earnings are an integral component of total revenues, and
when the investment portfolio’s performance is less than expected, net assets can decrease
significantly. Operating expenses represent prepaid tuition contract benefits and expenses and
general and administrative expenses. Prepaid tuition contract benefits and expenses were
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$3,834,357 for the current year and $5,968,409 for the past year. See Note 5 to these financial
statements. Prepaid tuition contract benefits and expenses are affected by actuarial factors such
as the assumed rate of return and tuition growth, which are discussed in the Economic Factors
section later in this discussion and analysis. As noted on the previous page, investment returns
and tuition growth that were better than the actuarial projections were favorable to the Program.

Financial Analysis of the Savings Plan

Net position. The following are condensed Statements of Fiduciary Net Position of the Savings
Plan as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.

2013 2012
Assets $1,884,431,081 $1,626,233,488
Liabilities 1,777,242 1,305,342
Net position $1,882,653,839 $1,624,928,146

Net position increased 15.9% or $257,725,693 during the current fiscal year. Net position is the
excess of total assets over total liabilities. Investment gains of $220,571,591 drove the increase.
Contributions in excess of $42,122,117 over redemptions also contributed to the increase.

Investments make up 99.9% of total assets, and the remaining assets includes receivables for
units and securities sold, and dividends receivable. Approximately 95.0% of liabilities consists of
payables for securities purchased and units redeemed, and the remaining amount represents
accrued fees and other payables.
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Changes in net position. The following are condensed Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Position of the Savings Plan for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Year Ended June 30,

2013 2012

Additions

Contributions $ 215,987,778 $ 218,875,018
Net investment gain (loss) 220,571,591 (7,326,489)
Total additions 436,559,369 211,548,529
Deductions

Redemptions 173,865,661 154,918,875
Administrative expenses 4,968,015 4,331,493
Total deductions 178,833,676 159,250,368
Increase in net assets 257,725,693 52,298,161
Net position at beginning of year 1,624,928,146 1,572,629,985
Net position at end of year $ 1,882,653,839 $ 1,624,928,146

Contributions for the current fiscal year were relatively stable, decreasing only 1.3% from those
of the prior year. Redemptions increased 12.2% over the prior year as more participants are
graduating from high school and taking advantage of their savings to pay college costs. Overall
investment performance was strong for the year. Nearly all of the various investment portfolios
and funds that make up the Savings Plan had positive rates of return for the current fiscal year,
with many achieving more than 20% to a high of 32.4%

Administrative expenses for the Savings Plan represent charges related to investment
management expenses; sales, marketing and distribution expenses; and other administration
expenses.

Economic Factors

Prepaid Tuition Plan. The actuarial valuation of tuition contracts receivable and accrued
contract benefits liability as of June 30, 2013, is based on various actuarial assumptions. A key
assumption is average tuition inflation of 9.5% for the 2014-15 school years and 7.0% thereafter.

The actual weighted average tuition for in-state, full-time students increased 6.7% from school
years 2012-13 to 2013-14, and increased 6.8% from school years 2011-12 to 2012-13. Another
key assumption is a 5.6% rate of return on Prepaid Tuition Plan investments for the upcoming
fiscal year 2014 and through fiscal year 2017, and declining returns each year to 2022 when the
assumption is 2.6%. The assumed return is then 2.6% for each year after 2022. The plan’s actual
rate of return on its investments was 9.3% for fiscal year 2013 and 2.3% for 2012.

Long-term variances in the assumptions can affect the Prepaid Tuition Plan’s financial position.
Program management together with actuarial and investing consultants and the Program’s Board
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of Trustees (the “Board”) review the assumptions annually. Prepaid Tuition Plan management
and its advisors believe that the key assumptions, while subject to sudden and unexpected
changes in the future, were reasonable for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

As discussed in Note 9 to these financial statements, during fiscal year 2003 the West Virginia
Legislature closed the Prepaid Tuition Plan to new enrollment until the Legislature authorizes the
plan to reopen. No new contracts were sold in fiscal years 2012 and 2013. The Prepaid Tuition
Plan will continue in existence to service existing contracts and no current contracts will be
affected by the closure.

Also during fiscal year 2003, as discussed in Note 9 to these financial statements, the Legislature
created the Prepaid Tuition Trust Escrow Account to guarantee payment of Prepaid Tuition Plan
contracts. The Escrow Account will receive transfers of up to $1,000,000 from the State
Unclaimed Property Trust Fund each year there is an actuarially determined unfunded liability of
the Prepaid Tuition Plan. If the Prepaid Tuition Plan is unable to pay current tuition benefits,
funds may be withdrawn from the Escrow Account to meet those payments. At June 30, 2013,
there was $16,244,456 in the Escrow Account, which consisted of $15,254,008 in total transfers
from the Unclaimed Property Trust Fund and net investment gains of $990,448. There was a
$1,000,000 transfer in fiscal year 2013 because of the actuarial unfunded liability at the end of
fiscal year 2012. Because there is an actuarially determined unfunded liability of $13,357,159 in
the Prepaid Tuition Plan at June 30, 2013, $1,000,000 is expected to be transferred from the
Unclaimed Property Trust Fund to the Escrow Account on or before December 15, 2013, in
accordance with the provisions enacted by the Legislature. While the Board controls the Escrow
Account, funds in the Escrow Account are not assets of either the Prepaid Tuition Plan or the
Program and accordingly are not included in the basic financial statements included herein. The
State reports the Escrow Account in the general fund in its financial statements as unrestricted
cash.

Savings Plan. As an investment fund, the Savings Plan is subject to the same risks and
consequent gains and losses as all publicly and privately offered investment funds. The Savings
Plan is directly affected by all factors that affect the economic and investment arenas. Program
management continuously monitors activity in the stock market as well as consulting regularly
with its various investment advisors and analysts.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Program’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to Finance Director’s Office, West Virginia College
Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program, 1900 Kanawha Boulevard East, Charleston, WV 25305.

E R
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from primary government
Tuition contracts receivable
Other receivables

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Tuition contracts receivable
Investments

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued contract benefits liability
Accrued contract expense liability

Compensated absences
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued contract benefits liability
Accrued contract expense liability

Other postemployment benefits
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net (deficit) position

Restricted for payment of general and

administrative expenses
Unrestricted

Total net (deficit) position

Enterprise Funds of the

June 30, 2013

Prepaid Tuition

Statement of Net (Deficit) Position

College Prepaid
Tuition and
Savings Program
Administrative

Total Enterprise

Trust Fund Account Funds
$ 368,637 $ 1,510,239 $ 1,878,876
- 55,663 55,663
269,341 - 269,341
- 94,153 94,153
637,978 1,660,055 2,298,033
526,718 - 526,718
76,701,343 - 76,701,343
77,228,061 - 77,228,061
77,866,039 1,660,055 79,526,094
- 150,717 150,717
15,364,970 - 15,364,970
- 134,864 134,864
- 63,204 63,204
15,364,970 348,785 15,713,755
75,858,228 - 75,858,228
- 490,321 490,321
- 245,595 245,595
75,858,228 735,916 76,594,144
91,223,198 1,084,701 92,307,899
- 575,354 575,354
(13,357,159) - (13,357,159)
$ (13,357,159) $ 575,354 $ (12,781,805)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Enterprise Funds of the
West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net (Deficit) Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

College Prepaid

Tuition and
Savings
Prepaid Tuition Program Total Enterprise
Trust Fund Administrative Funds
Account

Operating revenues
Tuition contracts (See Note 5) $ 41,894 $ - $ 41,894
Savings Plan administrative fee - 1,092,546 1,092,546
Total operating revenues 41,894 1,092,546 1,134,440
Operating expenses
Tuition contract benefits (See Note 5) 3,921,492 - 3,921,492
Tuition contract expenses - (87,135) (87,135)
General and administrative expenses - 1,232,134 1,232,134
Total operating expenses 3,921,492 1,144,999 5,066,491
Operating loss (3,879,598) (52,453) (3,932,051)
Nonoperating revenues
Investment gain 6,781,671 - 6,781,671
Appropriations from primary government - 147,045 147,045
Total nonoperating revenues 6,781,671 147,045 6,928,716
Change in net position 2,902,073 94,592 2,996,665
Net (deficit) position at beginning of year (16,259,232) 480,762 (15,778,470)
Net (deficit) position at end of year $ (13,357,159) $ 575,354 $ (12,781,805)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Enterprise Funds of the

West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

College Prepaid
Tuition and
Savings Program
Prepaid Tuition Administrative

Total Enterprise

Trust Fund Account Funds

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from contract purchasers $ 388,911 $ - $ 388,911
Cash received from Savings Plan

administrator - 1,084,151 1,084,151
Tuition benefit payments (9,251,591) - (9,251,591)
Payments to employees - (596,337) (596,337)
Payments to suppliers - (444,206) (444,206)
Net cash used in operating activities (8,862,680) 43,608 (8,819,072)
Cash flows provided by noncapital

financing activities
Appropriations from primary

government - 160,980 160,980
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment earnings 1,342,474 - 1,342,474
Purchase of investments (1,340,687) - (1,340,687)
Proceeds from sale of investments 7,900,000 - 7,900,000
Net cash provided by investing activities 7,901,787 - 7,901,787
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (960,893) 204,588 (756,305)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year 1,329,530 1,305,651 2,635,181
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 368,637 $ 1,510,239 $ 1,878,876

(Continued on next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Enterprise Funds of the
West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

College Prepaid
Tuition and
Savings Program
Prepaid Tuition Administrative Total Enterprise
Trust Fund Account Funds

Reconciliation of operating loss to net

cash used in operating activities
Operating loss $ (3,879,598) $ (52,453) $ (3,932,051)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss)

gain to net cash used in operating

activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Tuition contracts receivable 347,017 - 347,017
Other receivables - (8,395) (8,395)
Accounts payable - 128,341 128,341
Accrued contract benefits liability (5,330,099) - (5,330,099)
Accrued contract expense liability - (87,135) (87,135)
Compensated absences - (1,712) (1,712)
Other postemployment benefits - 64,962 64,962
Net cash used in operating activities $ (8,862,680) $ 43,608 $ (8,819,072)
Noncash activities
Unrealized gain in investments $ 5,439,197 $ - $ 5,439,197
Appropriations receivable from primary
government $ - $ 55,663 $ 55,663

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Fiduciary Fund of the
West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Savings Plan Trust Fund

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2013

Assets

Investments at fair value $ 1,882,400,770
Receivables for units and securities sold 1,849,456
Dividends receivable 180,855
Total assets 1,884,431,081
Liabilities

Payables for units redeemed and securities purchased 1,687,837
Accrued fees 89,405
Total liabilities 1,777,242
Net Position

Held in trust for individuals and organizations 1,882,653,839
Total net position $ 1,882,653,839

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Fiduciary Fund of the

West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Savings Plan Trust Fund

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Additions
Contributions:
Account holders

Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Net increase in fair value of investments
Dividends and capital gains
Total investment gain
Investment expense

Net investment gain
Total additions

Deductions
Redemptions:
Payments in accordance with trust agreements
Redemptions of deposits to establish new investment funds
Total redemptions
Administrative expense

Total deductions

Change in net position held in trust for individuals and organizations
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 215,987,778

215,987,778

174,377,430
51,505,388

225,882,818
5,311,227

220,571,591

436,559,369

173,745,098
120,563

173,865,661
4,968,015

178,833,676

257,725,693
1,624,928,146

$ 1,882,653,839
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

1. Organization and Operations

The West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program (the “Program”) operates under
the West Virginia State Code Chapter 18, Article 30, West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and
Savings Act (the “Act”). The Act was adopted by the West Virginia State Legislature in 1997.
The Act was amended April 12, 2001, to continue the Prepaid Tuition Trust Fund (the “Prepaid
Tuition Plan”), which operates as a plan, not a trust fund, and to enhance and complement the
Prepaid Tuition Plan by authorizing the creation of the Savings Plan Trust Fund (the “Savings
Plan”), which operates as a plan, not a trust fund.

The Program is administered by the Office of the State Treasurer on behalf of the Program’s
nine-member Board of Trustees (the “Board”). The purpose of the Program is to provide
individuals and organizations the opportunity to prepay future college tuition and mandatory fees
at West Virginia public and private colleges and universities and to offer a comprehensive state-
sponsored college savings plan. Collectively, the Prepaid Tuition Plan and the Savings Plan are
marketed as SMART529™ The College Savings Solution. The Board selected Hartford Life
Insurance Company (“Hartford Life”) to provide records administration, cash management, and
customer service for both the Prepaid Tuition Plan and the Savings Plan. Hartford Life also
provides investment management services for the Savings Plan.

All funds paid into or invested through the Program in the Prepaid Tuition Plan and the Savings
Plan will be available for use at any two- or four-year college or university in the country, with
refund and transfer options available. West Virginia state income tax deductions are available to
state residents for contributions to the Program. Since the Program is an Internal Revenue
Service Section 529 Qualified Tuition Program, earnings on the funds are federally tax deferred
until used for college. Additionally, benefits of the Prepaid Tuition and Savings plans are exempt
from federal income tax for qualified payouts.

Enterprise Funds: Prepaid Tuition Plan and Administrative Account

Operations of the Prepaid Tuition Plan began in July 1997 with the initial enrollment period
commencing on October 1, 1998, and ending January 31, 1999. The Prepaid Tuition Plan has
sold approximately 9,730 prepaid tuition contracts since inception. As mentioned earlier in this
note, the Prepaid Tuition Plan is administered by the Office of the State Treasurer under the
direction of the Program’s Board. Hartford Life provides records administration, cash
management, and customer service for the Prepaid Tuition Plan, and provides investment
management services for the Savings Plan.
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Effective March 8, 2003, the West Virginia Legislature closed the Prepaid Tuition Plan to new
contracts until the Legislature authorizes the Prepaid Tuition Plan to reopen. According to State
Code (818-30-6 (Q)), closing the Prepaid Tuition Plan to new contracts shall not mean that the
Prepaid Tuition Plan is closed and shall not affect any contracts in effect on March 8, 2003. All
contract holders will continue to pay any amounts due, including monthly installments, penalties
and fees, and the Prepaid Tuition Plan will continue to pay all benefits due. No contracts were
sold in fiscal year 2013.

Contract payments of all Prepaid Tuition Plan participants are combined into a single investment
fund in order to maximize benefits. The fund is invested in a professionally managed portfolio of
stocks, bonds, and other types of investments through the West Virginia Investment Management
Board (the “IMB”). Under State Code, the investments must be made with the care, skill, and
prudence and diligence under the circumstances prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like
capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like
character and with like aims. Prepaid Tuition Plan investments shall be diversified to the extent
permitted by law so as to minimize the risk of a large loss. Monies from the investment fund are
used to pay Prepaid Tuition Plan benefits and expenses.

When the beneficiary is accepted to an eligible college or university, the contract becomes
redeemable.

Benefits can be transferred to any fully accredited private or out-of-state college or university
within the United States in an amount based on the weighted average cost of tuition and fees then
charged by West Virginia public colleges and universities. However, there is no guarantee that
the tuition benefit available will cover the actual cost of tuition and fees charged by the private or
out-of-state institution.

While the beneficiary has up to ten years after high school to use the Prepaid Tuition Plan
benefit, four other options are available: 1) the purchaser may transfer the contract benefits to an
eligible substitute beneficiary; 2) at any time four years or more after the beneficiary’s expected
college entrance date, the purchaser may request a refund of the contract benefit value, less a
termination fee and an earnings penalty required by federal law; 3) at any time, the purchaser
may cancel the contract and receive a refund of the contract value, less administrative fees and
any benefits already paid; or 4) the purchaser may transfer the prepaid contract cancellation
value at the time of transfer to the Program’s Savings Plan in accordance with state and federal
regulations.

If the beneficiary is awarded a scholarship for tuition and fees, the benefit value of the contract
will be paid in accordance with state and federal regulations.

The College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program Administrative Account (the “Administrative
Account”) was created by State Code to implement, operate and maintain the Prepaid Tuition
and Savings Plans and the overall Program. Sources of funds for the Administrative Account
come from fees charged to participants in both the Prepaid Tuition Plan and Savings Plan and
from appropriations from the State, which is the primary government. Expenses of the
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Administrative Account cover administrative operations of the overall Program such as wages
and benefits, consulting services, and office supplies.

The accompanying financial statements report the financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, of the Program’s enterprise funds, which
includes the Prepaid Tuition Plan and the Administrative Account. The Program’s enterprise
funds are enterprise funds of the primary government of the State of West Virginia.

Fiduciary Fund: Savings Plan

Beginning March 1, 2002, the Savings Plan has been available in conjunction with the Program’s
Prepaid Tuition Plan. Investment options have been developed in partnership with Hartford Life.
As mentioned earlier in this note, the Savings Plan is administered by the Office of the State
Treasurer under the direction of the Program’s Board. Hartford Life provides records
administration, cash management, investment management and customer service for the Savings
Plan.

The Savings Plan currently is composed of 55 different investment portfolios and individual
funds. These financial statements report on the total of all portfolios and individual funds.

The Savings Plan is a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) of the primary government of
the State of West Virginia.

2. Significant Accounting Policies — Enterprise Funds
Basis of Accounting

As enterprise funds, the financial statements of the Prepaid Tuition Plan and Administrative
Account are presented on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Under this method of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Enterprise
funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the intent is that the costs of providing services to the general
public and others on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

The enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the enterprise
funds’ principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues and expenses relate to
tuition contract revenues, tuition contract benefits and expenses, and general and administrative
expenses. Net investment earnings and appropriations from the State, which is the primary
government, are reported as nonoperating revenues.

It is the Program’s policy to first apply unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.
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As a private-purpose trust fund, which is a type of fiduciary fund, assets of the Savings Plan are
held in a trustee capacity for individuals and entities invested in the plan, and those assets cannot
be used to support the Program. Because the Savings Plan assets are not available to support the
Program’s operations, the Savings Plan is discussed separately in Note 10 to these financial
statements. Assets of the Program’s enterprise funds (the “Prepaid Tuition Plan” and the
“Administrative Account”) are available to support the Program’s operations.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates.

Budgetary Information

The Office of the State Treasurer submits a detailed budgetary schedule of administrative
expenses to the Budget Director of the West Virginia Department of Revenue prior to the
beginning of each fiscal year. The budgetary schedule is prepared on the cash basis of
accounting. Appropriation requests for the Program are included in the Treasurer’s schedule. The
budgetary schedule is subject to the annual budget review and approval process of the West
Virginia State Legislature.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments with maturities when acquired of 90 days or less.
Cash and cash equivalents of the enterprise funds principally consist of interest-earning deposits
in certain investment pools maintained by the IMB. Such funds are available to the Program with
overnight notice. Earnings from these investments are distributed to investment pool participants
based on their pro rata participation in the pools.

Investments

Investments are funds invested with the IMB. The invested funds are used to pay contract
benefits liabilities as they become due. The intent of the investment allocation is to invest funds
in the longest terms possible. The current maturity dates of such investments require that the
investments be reported as noncurrent assets. However, investments will be liquidated, as
needed, to cover current liabilities.

Revenue Recognition

The Plan recognizes revenue for tuition contracts in the year the contracts are entered into with
the purchaser, with future contract payments being recognized at their present value. The Plan
uses its expected return on investments as the discount rate in calculating such present value. A
rate of 5.6% is assumed for the upcoming fiscal year 2014 through fiscal year 2017. Declining
rates are then assumed for each year through 2022 when the rate is assumed to be 2.6%.
Contracts receivable are reduced by the annual amounts of contract payments received, and the
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remaining contracts receivable is recorded at present value. Changes in the present value of the
remaining contracts receivable are recognized in revenue in the year of the change. The
Administrative Account records Savings Plan administrative fee revenue from Hartford Life in
the period that administrative services are provided.

Tuition Contracts Receivable

Tuition contracts receivable of the Prepaid Tuition Plan at the balance sheet date represents
Program management’s best estimate of the present value of future contract payments using the
discount rates discussed above.

Accrued Contract Benefits Liability

Accrued contract benefits liability of the Prepaid Tuition Plan is recorded at the actuarial present
value of future tuition obligations. The valuation method reflects the present value of estimated
tuition benefits that will be paid in future years and is adjusted for the effects of projected tuition
and fee increases and termination of contracts.

Compensated Absences, Including Other Postretirement Benefits

Employees fully vest in all earned but unused annual leave to maximum amounts ranging from
240 to 320 hours depending on years of service, and the Program accrues for obligations that
may arise in connection with compensated absences for vacation at the current rate of employee
pay. In accordance with personnel policies of the State, employees vest in any remaining unused
sick leave only upon retirement, at which time any unused sick and annual leave time either can
be converted into employer-paid premiums for post-retirement health care coverage through the
West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (“PEIA”), or can be converted into a greater
retirement benefit under the State of West Virginia Public Employees Retirement System
(“PERS”). The Program accrues for other postretirement benefits that may arise in connection
with unused sick leave that may be converted to employer-paid premiums for post-retirement
health care coverage, and for the employer portion of all post-retirement health care coverage
regardless of whether the retiree has unused sick leave.

Restricted Assets and Net Position

Restricted assets are subject to constraints imposed by creditors or by law. The Act restricts the
Prepaid Tuition Plan’s assets to be used specifically for the Prepaid Tuition Plan’s obligations;
however, the Prepaid Tuition Plan has a deficiency in net position as of June 30, 2013.
Accordingly, such deficiency is included in the unrestricted net (deficit) position. Assets of the
Administrative Account are restricted for the purposes of implementing, operating and
maintaining the Program.
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Federal Income Taxes

The Program has been designed to comply with the requirements for treatment as a qualified
tuition program under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, no federal income
tax provision is required.

Effect of New Accounting Pronouncements

Management has adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which provides financial reporting
guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. The Statement
also amends net asset reporting requirements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual
measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The Program’s
enterprise funds do not report any deferred outflows or inflows of resources. The effect of the
statement on the Program’s financial reporting is to rename net assets as net position.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,
which establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources (expenses or
expenditures) or inflows of resources (revenues), certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities. Although the provisions of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012, Program management has chosen to
implement it early for fiscal year 2013. At this point, this Statement does not affect these
financial statements because the Program’s enterprise funds and fiduciary fund do not contain
outflows or inflows of resources.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, which replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The
requirements of Statements 25 and 50 remain applicable to pension plans that are not
administered through trusts covered by the scope of this Statement and to defined contribution
plans that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2013.
Program management has not determined the effect, if any, this statement will have on its
financial statements.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27,
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the
requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are
provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet
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certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions that
are not covered by the scope of this Statement. The provisions of this Statement are effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. Program management has not
determined the effect, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.

3. Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Program invests its enterprise funds in investment pools maintained by the IMB. The funds
are invested in longer-term securities and subject to market fluctuations. Investments are
reported by the IMB at fair value, which is the same as the value of the pool shares, and are
accounted for by the Program accordingly, with changes in the fair value included in investment
earnings. The earnings from these pooled investments are distributed to investment pool
participants based on their pro rata participation in the pools.

The following represents a calculation of the net increase in the fair value of investments during
the year ended June 30, 2013:

Fair value at end of year $ 76,701,343
Less cost of investments purchased during year (1,340,687)
Plus cost of investments redeemed during year 7,900,000
Less fair value at beginning of year (77,821,459)

Change in fair value of investments during year $ 5,439,197

Investment and Deposit Risk Disclosures

The Program has adopted an investment policy for the Prepaid Plan that mandates that
investments shall be diversified so as to minimize the risk of large losses. Under the investment
policy, a long-term focus on investment results as well as prudent diversification across public
security markets will be the primary risk control mechanisms. A prudently allocated investment
program possesses a significant level of diversification, which results in risk reduction.
Diversification is considered in regard to asset classes, geography/country, industry, and
maturity. In order to preserve risk control, the Program has adopted a formal review schedule in
which investment performance is reviewed at least quarterly, broad asset allocation and within-
class asset allocation are reviewed every three years, and the Program’s investment policy is
reviewed every year.

The investment policy establishes that the Program’s enterprise funds are to be allocated 55% to
fixed income securities, 30% to U.S. equities, and 15% to international equities for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2014-17. The allocation will shift each year after that toward more fixed
income securities to a total of 100% in fiscal year 2022. At June 30, 2013, the Program’s
enterprise funds were invested in the following pools at the IMB.
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Fair Value of  Percent of

Program’s Total

IMB Investment Pool Funds Investment
Large Cap Domestic Equity $ 18,942,187 24.7%
Non-Large Cap Domestic Equity 4,708,379 6.1%
Core Fixed Income 40,104,093 52.3%
International Equity 7,732,903 10.1%
International Nonqualified 4,208,136 5.5%
Short-Term Fixed Income 1,005,645 1.3%
Total pool assets $ 76,701,343 100.0%

The investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk, credit risk,
concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the Program will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The IMB investment pools in
which the Program invests its enterprise funds are either not exposed to custodial credit risk or
held no securities at June 30, 2013, that were subject to custodial credit risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Neither the IMB nor its investment pools have been rated for credit risk by any
organization. The credit risks of the IMB investment pools in which the Program invests its
enterprise funds are described as follows.

Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool — This pool holds equity securities of U.S. companies,
exchange traded stock index futures, and money market funds with the highest credit rating.
These types of securities are not exposed to credit risk.

Non-Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool — This pool holds equity securities of U.S. companies and
money market funds with the highest credit rating. These types of securities are not exposed to
credit risk.

International Nonqualified Pool — This pool invests in a collective trust fund that invests in
equities denominated in foreign currencies. This pool is not exposed to credit risk.

International Equity Pool — This pool has both equity securities and cash that are denominated in
foreign currencies. This pool is not exposed to credit risk.
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Short-Term Fixed Income Pool — The IMB limits the exposure to credit risk in the Short-Term
Fixed Income Pool by requiring all corporate bonds to be rated AA or higher. Commercial paper
must be rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s and P-1 by Moody’s. Additionally, the pool must have
at least 15% of its assets in United States Treasury issues. The following table provides
information on the weighted average credit ratings of the Short-Term Fixed Income Pool’s
investments at June 30, 2013. The table includes securities received as collateral for repurchase
agreements.

Percent of

Security Type Moody’s S&P  Pool Assets
Agency discount notes Aaa AA 40.5%
Agency notes Aaa AA 2.5%
U.S. Treasury bills * P-1 AA 16.2%
Commercial paper P-1 A-1 15.0%
U.S. Treasury notes * Aaa AA 25.8%
Total rated investments 100.0%

* U.S. Treasury issues are explicitly guaranteed by the United States government and are not subject to credit risk. The ratings
are shown for the reader’s information.

Core Fixed Income Pool — The IMB limits the exposure to credit risk in the Core Fixed Income
Pool by maintaining at least an average rating of investment grade as defined by the Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating of Organizations. The following table provides information on the
weighted average credit ratings of the Core Fixed Income Pool’s asset types at June 30, 2013.

Percent of

Security Type Moody’s  S&P  Pool Assets
U.S. Treasury bonds and notes * Aaa AA 21.7%
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations Aaa AA 19.9%
Corporate bonds A3 A 20.8%
Agency mortgage backed securities Aaa AA 17.0%
Corporate collateralized mortgage obligations A2 AA 10.4%
Corporate asset backed securities Aa3 AA 3.7%
Agency bonds Aaa AA 2.0%
Foreign government bonds Aal AA 1.0%
Short-term issue Aaa AAA 0.8%
Municipal bonds Aa2 AA 0.6%
Total rated investments 97.9%

* U.S. Treasury issues are explicitly guaranteed by the United States government and are not subject to credit risk. The ratings
are shown for the reader’s information.

Unrated securities include investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned valued at
2.1% of the fair value of the Pool’s investments.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Program’s
investment in a single corporate issuer. None of the IMB pools in which the Program
participates held securities of any one issuer in excess of 5% of the value of the pools in
accordance with West Virginia statutes.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The following IMB pools in which the Program participates are not exposed to
interest rate risk: Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool, Non-Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool,
International Nonqualified Pool, and International Equity Pool. The following pools are exposed
to interest rate risk.

Short-Term Fixed Income Pool — The weighted average maturity of the investments in the Short-
Term Pool is not to exceed 60 days. The maturity of floating rate notes is assumed to be the next
interest rate reset date. The following table provides the weighted average maturities (WAM)
for the various asset types in the Short-Term Pool as of June 30, 2013.

Carrying Value ~ WAM

Security Type (In Thousands)  (Days)
Agency discount notes $ 129,988 43
Repurchase agreements 78,206 1
U.S. Treasury bills 51,995 45
Commercial paper 47,991 38
Agency notes 8,015 106
U.S. Treasury notes 3,019 123
Total pool assets $ 319,214 35

Core Fixed Income Pool — The IMB monitors interest rate risk of the Core Fixed Income Pool by
evaluating the modified duration of the investments in the pool. The following table provides
the weighted average modified duration for the various asset types in the Core Fixed Income
Pool as of June 30, 2013.
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Modified
Fair Value Duration
Security Type (In Thousands)  (Years)

U.S. Treasury bonds and notes $ 282,660 6.5
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations 259,377 3.7
Corporate bonds 270,356 5.7
Agency mortgage backed securities 220,519 4.6
Corporate collateralized mortgage obligations 134,887 2.2
Foreign government bonds 12,467 54
Investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned 26,850 0.0
Short-term issue 10,892 0.0
Corporate asset backed securities 48,767 1.4
Agency bonds 26,487 5.6
Municipal bonds 7,311 14.3
Total pool assets $ 1,300,573 4.6

The Core Fixed Income Pool invests in commercial and residential mortgage-backed and asset-
backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. The cash flows from these securities
are based on the payment of the underlying collateral. The effective duration and yield to
maturity of these securities are dependent on estimated prepayment assumptions that consider
historical experience, market conditions, and other criteria. Actual prepayments may vary with
changes in interest rates. Rising interest rates often result in a slower rate of prepayments while
declining rates tend to lead to faster prepayments. As a result, the fair values of these securities
are highly sensitive to interest rate changes. At June 30, 2013, these securities were
approximately 51.0% of the value of the Core Fixed Income Pool.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment or a deposit. The following IMB pools in which the Program participates
are not exposed to foreign currency risk: Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool, Non-Large Cap
Domestic Equity Pool, Short-Term Fixed Income Pool, and Core Fixed Income Pool. The
following pools are exposed to foreign currency risk.

International Nonqualified Pool — This pool invests in a collective trust fund that invests in
equities denominated in foreign currencies. This investment, although denominated in U.S.
dollars, is exposed to foreign currency risk through the underlying investments. West Virginia
statute limits the amount of international securities to no more than 30% of the total assets
managed by the IMB. As of June 30, 2013, the IMB was incompliance with this limitation.

International Equity Pool — This pool has both equity securities and cash that are denominated in
foreign currencies and are exposed to foreign currency risk. West Virginia statute limits the
amount of international securities to no more than 30% of the total assets managed by the IMB.
As of June 30, 2013, the IMB was incompliance with this limitation.
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Deposit Risk

The carrying value in the Administrative Account of cash on deposit with the State Treasurer’s
Office, which approximate estimated fair value, was $1,510,239 at June 30, 2013. The cash is
pooled with other deposits from the State’s agencies, departments, boards and commissions and
is subject to coverage by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) or
collateralized by securities held by the State or its agents in the State’s name. Other cash deposits
held in outside bank accounts were $368,637. Such deposits are insured by the FDIC or
collateralized by the State or its agents in the State’s name. Custodial credit risk in regard to
deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The Program does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. Program management does not believe any of its deposits are exposed to
custodial credit risk.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Prepaid Plan indirectly holds derivative financial instruments by its participation in an
investment pool at the IMB in which futures contracts are the only derivative financial
instrument held in the pool and represent less than 0.1% of the total pool’s net asset value as of
June 30, 2012. As the Program does not hold any direct investments in derivative financial
instruments, no further disclosure or consideration of their impact on the Prepaid Plan’s financial
position and results of operations is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments.

4. Accrued Contract Benefits Liability

The total actuarial present value of accrued contract benefits liability of $91,223,198 as of June
30, 2013, was based on the provision for contract benefits since inception of the Prepaid Tuition
Plan. Current liabilities of $15,364,970 represent obligations that will become due within a year
from June 30, 2013. Noncurrent liabilities of $75,858,228 represent obligations that will become
due more than a year after June 30, 2013.

Under the actuarial evaluation, tuition and fees are assumed to increase an average of 9.5% for
the 2014-15 school year and 7.0% per year thereafter. Investments are assumed to earn 5.6% for
the years ending June 30, 2014-17. Declining rates are assumed for each year thereafter through
2022 when the rate is assumed to be 2.6%. The rate is then assumed to be 2.6% for fiscal year
2023 and thereafter.
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The accrued contract benefits liability at June 30, 2013, and changes for the fiscal year then
ended are as follows:

Beginning balance, June 30, 2012 $ 96,553,297
Interest cost 5,607,577
Actuarial gain (2,504,537)
Miscellaneous factors (94,387)
Changes in actuarial assumptions 912,839
Tuition benefit payments and refunds (9,251,591)
Ending balance, June 30, 2013 $ 91,223,198

The actuarial gain was the result of tuition increases for the 2013-14 school year being less than
expected. Weighted average tuition had been assumed to increase 9.5% but instead increased
6.5%. Changes in actuarial assumptions were not favorable because investment return
projections were lowered to reflect the uncertain economic times.

5. Tuition Contract Revenues and Tuition Contract Benefits and Expenses

The tuition contract revenues and tuition contract benefits and expenses represent current
revenues and expenses of the Prepaid Plan. Such amounts are determined by the time value of
money as a result of changes in actuarial assumptions year over year. Because the Prepaid Plan
is closed to new enrollments, the revenues and expenses related to such accounts are determined
directly and solely by actuarial assumptions, estimations, and economic factors, such as the
actuarial interest rate, tuition growth projections, account cancellations, economic inflation,
beneficiaries’ choices of schools, and actual experience versus actuarial expectations. In any
given year, fluctuations in actuarial assumptions and/or actual experience can significantly
change revenues and expenses, and, under certain circumstances, create negative revenues and
expenses. An actuarial gain in the accrued contract expense liability in the Administrative
Account created negative tuition contract expenses for Fiscal Year 2013.

The following represents components of tuition contract revenues and tuition contract benefits
and expenses reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net (Deficit)
Assets for the Year Ended June 30, 2013:

Tuition contract revenues

Actuarially estimated tuition contract revenues for Fiscal Year 2013 $ 57,866
Increase in tuition contracts receivable due to changes in actuarial

assumptions 4,755
Decline in tuition contracts receivable due to account cancellations during the

year (20,727)
Tuition contract revenues for Fiscal Year 2013 (an actuarial gain on tuition

contracts receivable) $ 41,894
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Tuition contract benefits

Interest growth in actuarially estimated tuition contract benefits for Fiscal

Year 2013 $ 5,607,577
Decline in accrued contract benefits liability due to lower tuition growth than

estimated for the 2013-14 school year (2,504,537)
Increase in accrued contract benefits liability due to changes in various

actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2013 912,839
Decrease in accrued contract benefits liability due to miscellaneous factors (94,387)
Tuition contract benefits for Fiscal Year 2013 (an actuarial loss on accrued

contract benefits liability) $ 3,921,492

Tuition contract expenses

Interest growth in actuarially estimated tuition contract expenses for Fiscal

Year 2013 $ 39,080
Decrease in accrued contract expense liability due to assumed actuarial

payments during Fiscal Year 2013 (143,323)
Increase in accrued contract expense liability due to changes in various

actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2013 6,155
Increase in accrued contract benefits liability due to account cancellations and

miscellaneous factors 10,953
Tuition contract expenses for Fiscal Year 2013 (an actuarial gain on accrued

contract benefits liability) $ (87,135)

6. Compensated Absences, Retirement Benefit Plans, and Other Postemployment Benefits
Compensated Absences

The accruals for compensated absences represent obligations that may arise for earned but
unused annual leave as of June 30, 2013. Current liabilities of $63,204 represent obligations for
compensated absences that can become due within a year from June 30, 2013.

The accrued compensated absences liability at June 30, 2013, and changes for the fiscal year
then ended are as follows:

Beginning balance, June 30, 2012 $ 64,916
Addition: Annual leave earned 43,718
Reduction: Annual leave used (45,430)
Ending balance, June 30, 2013 $ 63,204
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Retirement Plan Description

The Program contributes to the PERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board (“CPRB”)
pursuant to Chapter 5, Article 10D of the West Virginia Code. The PERS provides retirement,
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The CPRB issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the PERS. That report can be obtained by writing to CPRB, 4101 MacCorkle
Avenue Southeast, Charleston,WV 25304.

Retirement Plan Funding Policy

Eligible employees are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual covered salary, and during the
current fiscal year the Program was required to contribute 14.5% of covered employees’ salaries
to the PERS. The contribution requirements of eligible employees and the Program are
established and may be amended by the CPRB. The Program’s contributions to the PERS were
$54,023, $58,744 and $38,011 for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for the period.

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan Description

The State of West Virginia sponsors the West Virginia Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (the
“OPEB Plan”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment plan
administered by the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency (the “PEIA”), to provide
medical benefits to retired state and local government employees. Chapter 5, Article 16D of the
West Virginia Code created the West Virginia Retiree Health Benefits Trust Fund (the “RHBT”)
and assigns the authority to administer the plan to PEIA. The PEIA issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
Trust. That report can be obtained by writing to PEIA, 1900 Kanawha Boulevard East,
Charleston, WV 25305, or by calling (304) 558-7850.

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan Funding Policy

The State Code requires the OPEB Plan to bill the participating employers 100.0% of the Annual
Required Contribution (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded liabilities (or
funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. State of West Virginia plan
employers are billed per active health policy per month. The latest OPEB actuarial valuation
was performed as of June 30, 2011, and the ARC amounts were applied prospectively to the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011.

The Program’s ARC to the OPEB Plan for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $79,380. During
the year, the Program paid $14,418 in ARC. The remaining ARC amount of $64,962 was neither
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billed nor paid and is recorded as additional noncurrent other postemployment benefits liability
as of June 30, 2013.

7. Transactions with State Treasurer’s Office

The State Treasurer’s Office provides various administrative services at no cost to the Program
and pays certain administrative costs on behalf of the Program. Such administrative services and
costs were not determinable for the year ended June 30, 2013 because they were blended in with
the overall operations of the State Treasurer’s Office.

8. Risk Management

The Program is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; and natural
disasters.

The Program has obtained health coverage for its employees through PEIA. PEIA provides the
following basic employee benefit coverage to all participants: hospital, surgical, group major
medical, basic group life, accidental death, and prescription drug coverage for active and retired
employees of the State of West Virginia and various related State and non-State agencies.
Additionally, the Program has obtained coverage for job-related injuries through its participation
in the private, employer-owned mutual insurance company BrickStreet Insurance. There have
been no workers’ compensation claims since the inception of the Program.

Furthermore, the Program uses the West Virginia State Board of Risk and Insurance
Management, which provides a public entity risk pool, to obtain coverage in the amount of
$1,000,000 per occurrence for general liability and property damage. There have been no claims
since the inception of the Program.

9. Net Assets Deficiency

The Prepaid Tuition Plan has a net assets deficiency of approximately $13,357,159 as of June 30,
2013. This deficiency was largely caused by investment losses in fiscal years 2002, 2008 and
2009, unexpected tuition increases in the 2002-2003 and 2004-05 school years, changes in prior
years of estimates of future investment rate of return and tuition growth, and significant
adjustments in actuarial assumptions in fiscal year 2008.

The Program’s ability to pay obligations of the Prepaid Tuition Plan is dependent on long-term
investment programs and adequate levels of future cash flows. Management sought and received
support from the State Legislature in the form of a pledge of assets from the State Unclaimed
Property Trust Fund to support payment of Prepaid Tuition Plan benefits. In March 2003, the
Legislature created the Prepaid Tuition Trust Escrow Account to guarantee payment of Prepaid
Tuition Plan contracts. Under the legislation, the Escrow Account will receive transfers of
$1,000,000 from the State Unclaimed Property Trust Fund each year there is an actuarially
determined unfunded liability of the Prepaid Tuition Plan. An additional one-time transfer of
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$8,000,000 from the Unclaimed Property Trust Fund was authorized for July 2009. All earnings
on the transferred funds will remain in the Escrow Account. In the event the Prepaid Tuition Plan
is unable to cover the amount of money needed to meet its current obligations, funds may be
withdrawn from the Escrow Account to meet those obligations. The independent actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2013, estimates that the Prepaid Tuition Plan will exhaust its investment
funds during fiscal year 2021, and will then need to begin drawing from the Escrow Account to
pay its obligations.

Beginning in December 2003, funds totaling $15,254,008 have been transferred to the Escrow
Account because the Prepaid Tuition Plan had actuarial deficits in fiscal years 2003-12. The
funds were invested and have had a net investment gain of $990,448 for the ten years ended June
30, 2013, leaving the account with a balance of $16,244,456 at June 30, 2013. There was
$1,000,000 transferred in fiscal year 2013 because of the actuarial unfunded liability at the end
of fiscal year 2012. Because there was an actuarially determined unfunded liability of
$13,357,159 in the Prepaid Tuition Plan as of June 30, 2013, an additional $1,000,000 was
transferred from the Unclaimed Property Trust Fund to the Escrow Account on November 12,
2013, in accordance with the provisions enacted by the Legislature. Funds transferred or to be
transferred into the Escrow Account do not affect the actuarial valuation of the Prepaid Tuition
Plan and are not included in the Prepaid Tuition Plan’s basic financial statements. The State
reports the Escrow Account in the general fund in its financial statements as unrestricted cash.

Effective March 8, 2003, the West Virginia Legislature closed the Prepaid Tuition Plan to new
contracts until the Legislature authorizes the plan to reopen. According to State Code (§18-30-6
(9)), closing the plan to new contracts shall not mean that the Prepaid Tuition Plan is closed and
shall not affect any contracts in effect on March 8, 2003. Contract holders will continue to pay
any amounts due, and the Prepaid Tuition Plan will continue to pay all benefits due. It is
unknown what effect, if any, the closure to new enrollment will have on the financial position of
the Prepaid Tuition Plan.

Management believes that the Prepaid Tuition Plan will continue to have sufficient liquid
resources to meet its obligations as they become due through June 30, 2014. The accompanying
financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that might result should management’s
actions to eliminate the net assets deficiency fail to be successful.

10. Significant Accounting Policies - Savings Plan

Basis of Accounting

As a fiduciary fund, the Savings Plan’s financial statements are presented on the flow of
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. As mentioned in
Note 2, the Savings Plan is a private-purpose trust fund, which is a type of fiduciary fund.
Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
therefore cannot be used to support a government’s own programs. A private-purpose trust fund
is a fiduciary fund used to report all trust arrangements, other than pension (and other employee
benefit) trust funds and investment trust funds, under which principal and income benefit
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individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Revenues mainly are derived from
investment income. Expenses consist primarily of investment expenses and administrative costs
associated with the Savings Plan.

Security Transactions and Investment Income

Security transactions of the Savings Plan are recorded on the trade date (date the order to buy or
sell is executed). Dividend income and capital gain distribution from the underlying funds, if
any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Realized gains and losses on securities transactions
are computed on the basis of identified cost.

Security Valuation

Investments in the underlying funds are valued at the closing net asset value per share of each
underlying fund on the day of valuation.

The Savings Plan contains a guaranteed investment contract named the SMART529 Stable Value
Fund. This fund is managed by INVESCO International. The contract has a guaranteed interest
rate that resets quarterly. Following the guidance and provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and
for External Investment Pools, the guaranteed investment contract is a nonparticipating contract
in which the redemption terms of the contract do not consider current market rates. The
nonparticipating guaranteed investment contract is valued at contract value (i.e., cost plus
accrued interest) as required under the current governmental accounting standards.

Units

Contributions by a participant are evidenced through the issuance of units in the particular
portfolio or fund. Contributions and withdrawals are subject to terms and limitations defined in
the participation agreement between the participant and the Savings Plan. Contributions are
invested in units of the assigned portfolio or fund on the same day as the credit of the
contribution to the participant’s account. Withdrawals are based on the unit value calculated for
such portfolio or fund on the day that the withdrawal request is accepted. The earnings portion of
non-qualified withdrawals, in addition to applicable federal and state income tax, may be subject
to a 10% non-qualified withdrawal penalty to be withheld from the withdrawal.

EXxpenses

Expenses in the Savings Plan financial statements reflect investment management fees, and
distribution and administrative charges.
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Investments

Hartford Life invests and manages the Savings Plan investments in 55 different portfolios. Each
portfolio, in turn, is either a mutual fund or contains multiple mutual funds. Investments are
reported at fair value, which is the same as the value of the pool shares, and are accounted for by
the Savings Plan accordingly, with changes in the fair value included in investment earnings.

The following represents a calculation of the net increase in the fair value of investments during
the year ended June 30, 2013:

Fair value at end of year $1,882,400,770
Less cost of investments purchased during year (262,233,648)
Plus cost of investments redeemed during year 178,379,892
Less fair value at beginning of year (1,624,169,584)

Change in fair value of investments during year $ 174,377,430

The Program has adopted an investment policy for the Savings Plan that requires blended
benchmarks for the various funds and portfolios. While the diversified benchmarks represent the
diversification of the funds and portfolios — and diversification in general results in risk
reduction — the investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk, credit risk,
concentration credit risk, interest rate risk or foreign currency risk. Investments in the Savings
Plan represent units of mutual funds rather than specific securities, and as such are not exposed
to those risks. Neither the Program, the Savings Plan, nor the funds and portfolios have been
rated for credit risk by any organization.

Related Parties and Fund Managers and Advisors

SMART529 WV Direct College Savings Plan The Vanguard Group, Inc. (“Vanguard”),
through its Equity Investment Group, serves as the investment adviser to all of the underlying
funds, except for the SMART529 Stable Value Fund, which is managed by Invesco Advisers,
Inc. (“Invesco”). Hartford Investment Financial Services, LLC, (“HIFSCO”) is the principal
underwriter and distributor for the plan.

The Hartford SMART529 College Savings Plan All of the underlying funds except the
SMART529 Stable Value Portfolio and the MFS Global Equity Fund are managed by Hartford
Funds Management Company, LLC (“HFMC”), which is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of
The Hartford. The SMART529 Stable Value portfolio is managed by Invesco. Massachusetts
Financial Services Company is the investment advisor for the MFS Global Equity Fund.

Wellington Management Company, LLP (“Wellington Management”) is investment sub-advisor
to The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, The Hartford High
Yield Fund, The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, The Hartford Small Cap Growth Fund,
The Hartford MidCap Fund, The Hartford MidCap Value Fund, The Hartford Dividend and
Growth Fund, The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, The Hartford Small Company Fund,
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, The Hartford
International Small Company Fund, The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, The Hartford Global

-57 -



W.Va. College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

All Asset Fund, The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, The Hartford Value Fund, The
Hartford Balanced Income Fund, The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, The Hartford
Unconstrained Bond Fund, and The Hartford World Bond Fund.

SMART529 Select College Savings Plan Dimensional Fund Advisors Inc. is investment
advisor to the underlying DFA portfolios in the SMART529 Select College Savings Plan.

Hartford Life and the West Virginia State Treasurer’s Office provide administrative services.
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Supplemental Information

The following information is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the financial statements of the Program. This section shows financial information of each investment
portfolio and individual fund of the Savings Plan, which is a fiduciary fund of the Program.
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2013
SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMARTS529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV

Direct Age-Based  Direct Age-Based ~ Direct Age-Based  Direct Age-Based  Direct Age-Based Direct Conservative Direct Conservative
Portfolio 0-8 Portfolio 9-13 Portfolio 14-15 Portfolio 16-17 Portfolio 18+ Balanced Portfolio Bond Portfolio

Assets:
Investments in underlying funds, at value *

DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ -3 - % -3 -8 -8 -3 -
DFA International Core Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - - -
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class - - - - - - -
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, CI - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional 5,154,842 4,929,450 1,454,026 653,717 648,347 125,821 -
Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional 11,983,178 11,459,367 3,379,570 1,519,909 1,507,462 292,591 -
DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - -

DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
Smart529 Stable Value Fund - 1,664,973 1,220,569 5,557,252 10,506,190 2,039,736 2,198,531
The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional 1,097,761 2,655,177 1,282,250 462,940 866,340 168,123 295,142

Vanguard Total Bond Market Ii Index Fund - Institutional 3,201,039 4,526,030 2,346,373 514,377 864,663 167,800 646,800
Total investments 21,436,820 25,234,997 9,682,788 8,708,195 14,393,002 2,794,071 3,140,473
Receivables for units and securities sold 8,349 15,354 1,830 1,307 5,770 306 2,205
Dividends receivable 5,463 7,651 3,937 848 1,453 282 1,107
Other assets - - - - - - -

Total assets 21,450,632 25,258,002 9,688,555 8,710,350 14,400,225 2,794,659 3,143,785

Liabilities:
Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 8,356 15,354 1,830 1,307 5,769 310 2,206
Accrued fees 441 477 167 43 36 7 10

Total liabilities 8,797 15,831 1,997 1,350 5,805 317 2,216

Net position $ 21,441,835 $ 25,242,171 $§ 9,686,558 $ 8,709,000 $ 14,394,420 $ 2794342 $ 3,141,569

Net position consists of:

Class A

Net position $ -8 -3 -8 -3 -8 -3 -

Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
Class B

Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Units outstanding - N - b - - -
Net position value $ - $ -3 - $ - 3 - 8 - $ -
Class C

Net position $ -3 -3 -8 -3 -8 -8 -

Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Class D

Net position $ 21,441,835 $ 25,242,171 $ 9,686,558 $ 8,709,000 $ 14,394,420 $ 2,794342 $ 3,141,569

Units outstanding 1,066,712 1,371,340 530,906 750,061 1,010,311 204,531 222,983
Net position value $ 20.10 $ 1841 $ 1825 $ 1161 $ 1425 $ 13.66 $ 14.09
ClassE

Net position $ -8 -3 -8 -3 -8 -3 -

Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - 3 - $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
* Identified cost $ 20,138,272 $ 24,181,023 $ 9,431,271 $ 8,313,419 $ 14,000,679 $ 2,658,122 $ 3,105,528
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2013

SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV The Hartford The Hartford
Direct Stable Value  Direct Balanced Direct Growth Direct Aggressive Direct 500 Index SMART529 Age-  SMART529 Age-
Fund Portfolio Portfolio Growth Portfolio Fund Based Portfolio 0-8 Based Portfolio 9-13
Assets:
Investments in underlying funds, at value *
DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ -3 - % -3 -3 -8 - % -
DFA International Core Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - - -
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y - - - - - 12,618,421 26,555,088
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y - - - - - 17,272,270 21,148,493
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - 18,982,820 23,989,299
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class - - - - - 8,695,881 12,060,851
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - 14,215,778 18,597,607
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - 7,936,598 26,544,975
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla - - - - - 37,755,342 50,321,487
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, CI - - - - - 10,245,275 13,268,229
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - 7,845,419 9,245,851
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - 6,266,690 7,912,837
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - 5,927,136 - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional - 1,841,295 3,301,172 5,983,389 - - -

Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional - 4,281,409 7,688,567 13,967,734 - - -
DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - -

DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
Smart529 Stable Value Fund 11,269,602 622,781 - - - - 15,918,395
The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y -

The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -

The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y - - - - - - 7,964,495

The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - 7,892,630 13,313,833

The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -

The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - 7,959,198

The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - 7,871,913 10,623,480

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional - 993,572 704,629 - - - -

Vanguard Total Bond Market i Index Fund - Institutional - 1,690,606 2,054,617 - - - -
Total investments 11,269,602 9,429,663 13,748,985 19,951,123 5,927,136 157,599,037 265,424,118
Receivables for units and securities sold 5,968 4,043 9,922 50,022 1,981 203,297 391,920
Dividends receivable - 2,829 3,449 - - - 15,741
Other assets - - - - - - -

Total assets 11,275,570 9,436,535 13,762,356 20,001,145 5,929,117 157,802,334 265,831,779

Liabilities:

Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 5,968 4,044 9,922 50,022 1,988 180,472 357,047
Accrued fees - 178 283 411 122 8,499 13,740

Total liabilities 5,968 4,222 10,205 50,433 2,110 188,971 370,787
Net position $ 11,269,602 $ 9432313 $ 13,752,151 $ 19,950,712 $ 5,927,007 $ 157,613,363 $ 265,460,992

Net position consists of:

Class A

Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 107,952,301 $ 190,190,032

Units outstanding - - - - - 5,492,179 10,663,533
Net position value $ - $ - $ -8 -8 - 3 19.66 $ 17.84
Class B

Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 20,722,108 $ 27,893,799

Units outstanding - - - - - 1,114,985 1,655,621
Net position value $ - $ -3 - 3 - 3 - $ 1859 $ 16.85
Class C

Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 20,626,230 $ 31,278,157

Units outstanding - - - - - 1,131,544 1,892,763
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 18.23 $ 16.53
Class D

Net position $ 11,269,602 $ 9,432,313 $ 13,752,151 $ 19,950,712 $ 5,927,007 $ - $ -

Units outstanding 792,711 526,805 720,324 1,052,360 481,590 - -
Net position value $ 1422 $ 17.90 $ 19.09 $ 18.96 $ 1231 $ - $ -
ClassE

Net position $ -8 -3 -8 -3 -8 8,312,724 $ 16,099,004

Units outstanding - - - - - 410,300 875,907
Net position value $ - 3 - $ - $ -8 - 3 2026 $ 18.38
* Identified cost $ 10,560,036 $ 9,007,671 $ 12,910,559 $ 18,121,177 $ 5,267,310 $ 146,407,425 $ 254,311,142
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2013

The Hartford The Hartford The Hartford The Hartford The Hartford
SMART529 Age- SMART529 Age- The Hartford SMART529 The Hartford SMART529 SMART529
Based Portfolio 14- Based Portfolio 16- SMART529 Age- Conservative SMART529 Stable  Aggressive Growth ~ Balanced Income
15 17 Based Portfolio 18+ Balanced Portfolio Value Fund Portfolio Portfolio
Assets:
Investments in underlying funds, at value *

DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ -3 - % -3 -3 -8 - % -
DFA International Core Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - - -
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y 10,711,083 4,978,918 6,140,865 326,082 - - -
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y 6,397,736 4,956,517 2,450,480 325,823 - 8,638,233 -
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y 7,483,941 - - - - 8,977,952 -
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class 3,243,190 - - - - 4,045,269 -
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y 5,357,949 6,977,353 3,693,402 459,675 - 6,820,438 -
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y 10,719,376 6,978,530 6,140,865 459,414 - 3,118,707 -
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla 14,421,796 6,952,085 2,455,057 455,310 - 18,545,073 -
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, CI 4,281,428 - - - - 4,954,963 -
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y 3,196,581 1,981,190 - 129,753 - 3,699,453 -
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -

The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y 2,659,724 - - - - 3,078,140 -
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y -

Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
Smart529 Stable Value Fund 12,836,928 59,673,389 89,686,132 3,914,730 60,803,818 - -

- - - - - - 5,610,240

The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y

The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -

The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y 5,354,176 4,977,648 6,152,318 326,227 - - -

The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y 10,736,194 1,996,303 6,163,752 130,961 - - -

The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -

The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y 4,280,075 - - - - - -

The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y 5,350,303 - - - - - -

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -

Vanguard Total Bond Market i Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Total investments 107,030,480 99,471,933 122,882,871 6,527,975 60,803,818 61,878,228 5,610,240
Receivables for units and securities sold 112,252 87,998 93,612 14,228 93,023 30,304 2,853
Dividends receivable 8,381 - - - - - -
Other assets - - - - - - -

Total assets 107,151,113 99,559,931 122,976,483 6,542,203 60,896,841 61,908,532 5,613,093

Liabilities:

Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 76,274 86,449 84,596 14,229 92,729 29,107 2,800
Accrued fees 5,659 5,438 6,907 327 3,386 3,198 282

Total liabilities 81,933 91,887 91,503 14,556 96,115 32,305 3,082
Net position $ 107,069,180 $ 99,468,044 $ 122,884,980 $ 6,527,647 $ 60,800,726 $ 61,876,227 $ 5,610,011

Net position consists of:

Class A

Net position $ 77,440,716 $ 67,956,252 $ 83,448,864 $ 5,258,859 $ 35,459,549 $ 36,110,356 $ 4,209,144

Units outstanding 4,392,348 5,919,058 6,087,966 486,655 2,575,993 1,946,634 374,684
Net position value $ 1763 $ 1148 $ 1371 $ 1081 $ 1377 $ 18.55 $ 11.23
Class B

Net position $ 9,425,257 $ 9,195,660 $ 8,206,824 $ - $ 4,350,375 $ 7,275,948 $ -

Units outstanding 566,190 813,872 634,710 - 334,224 414,496 -
Net position value $ 16.65 $ 1130 $ 1293 $ - $ 13.02 $ 1755 $ -
Class C

Net position $ 15,336,286 $ 17,137,768 $ 26,108,115 $ 1,062,686 $ 15,074,491 $ 8,663,605 $ 991,238

Units outstanding 940,212 1,525,376 2,059,039 100,091 1,181,300 503,255 88,939
Net position value $ 1631 $ 1124 $ 12.68 $ 1062 $ 1276 $ 1722 $ 11.15
Class D

Net position $ - $ -8 -3 -8 -8 - $ -

Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
ClassE

Net position $ 4,866,921 $ 5,178,364 $ 5121177 $ 206,102 $ 5916311 $ 9,826,318 $ 409,629

Units outstanding 267,896 447,740 362,539 18,967 417,446 514,175 36,404
Net position value $ 1817 $ 1157 $ 1413 $ 1087 $ 1417 $ 19.11 $ 11.25
* Identified cost $ 104,663,209 $ 95,590,306 $ 120,963,910 $ 6,429,383 $ 55,409,102 $ 55,443,726 $ 5,622,711
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2013

The Hartford The Hartford The Hartford The Hartford
The Hartford The Hartford SMART529 Checks SMARTS529 Capital SMART529 The Hartford SMART529 Growth
SMART529 SMART529 Growth and Balances Appreciation 529 Dividend and SMART529 Global ~ Opportunities 529
Balanced Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Fund Growth 529 Fund Al Asset 529 Fund Fund
Assets:
Investments in underlying funds, at value *
DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ -3 - % -3 -3 -8 - % -
DFA International Core Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - - -
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y 5,286,243 7,015,962 - - - - -
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y 4,209,968 9,603,546 10,443,932 108,176,240 - - -
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y 4,763,397 10,552,117 10,478,291 - 70,411,302 - -
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class 2,400,918 4,867,389 - - - - -
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y 3,701,898 7,895,197 - - - - -
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - 724,609 -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y 5,304,606 4,412,824 - - - - -
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - - 7,205,498
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla 10,017,351 20,992,331 - - - - -
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, CI 2,641,267 5,696,470 - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y 1,840,544 4,362,128 - - - - -
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y 1,575,185 3,484,339 - - - - -
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
Smart529 Stable Value Fund 3,167,984 - - - - - -
The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y 1,585,469 - - - - - -
The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y 2,649,591 4,390,189 - - - - -
The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y - - 10,473,704 - - - -
The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y 1,584,260 - - - - - -
The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y 2,114,181 4,378,661 - - - - -
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Bond Market i Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Total investments 52,842,862 87,651,153 31,395,927 108,176,240 70,411,302 724,609 7,205,498
Receivables for units and securities sold 56,161 58,612 18,602 59,967 87,935 288 1,023
Dividends receivable 3,161 - 24,410 - - - -
Other assets - - - - - - -
Total assets 52,902,184 87,709,765 31,438,939 108,236,207 70,499,237 724,897 7,206,521
Liabilities:
Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 36,633 54,020 17,331 39,956 84,228 288 1,022
Accrued fees 2,962 4,776 1,548 5,632 3,532 38 370
Total liabilities 39,595 58,796 18,879 45,588 87,760 326 1,392
Net position $ 52,862,589 $ 87,650,969 $ 31,420,060 $ 108,190,619 $ 70,411,477 $ 724571 $ 7,205,129
Net position consists of:
Class A
Net position $ 35,986,824 $ 60,268,572 $ 24572529 $ 68,509,184 $ 53,751,327 $ 410,964 $ 4,500,869
Units outstanding 2,072,711 3,231,343 1,592,823 3,132,881 2,725,536 36,262 316,207
Net position value $ 1736 $ 18.65 $ 1543 $ 2187 $ 1972 $ 1133 $ 14.23
Class B
Net position $ 3,875,587 $ 8,137,794 $ 1,634,316 $ 9,811,615 $ 4,750,925 $ - $ 515,502
Units outstanding 236,331 461,634 112,193 474,101 254,898 - 37,558
Net position value $ 16.40 $ 1763 $ 1457 $ 2070 $ 1864 $ - $ 13.73
Class C
Net position $ 10,850,731 $ 14,792,028 $ 3,558,052 $ 16,606,081 $ 8,144,068 $ 178,738 $ 1,158,381
Units outstanding 675,100 855,763 249,291 817,966 445,701 15,975 85,465
Net position value $ 1607 $ 1729 $ 1427 $ 2030 $ 1827 $ 1119 $ 13.55
Class D
Net position $ - $ -8 -3 -8 -8 - $ -
Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
ClassE
Net position $ 2,149,447 $ 4,452,575 $ 1,655,163 $ 13,263,739 $ 3,765,157 $ 134,869 $ 1,030,377
Units outstanding 120,134 231,760 103,835 588,971 185,239 11,855 71,173
Net position value $ 1789 $ 1921 $ 1594 $ 2252 $ 2033 $ 1138 $ 14.48
* Identified cost $ 50335175 $ 79,622,414 $ 27,140,441 $ 89913441 $ 57,593,957 $ 709,410 $ 5,342,274
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Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2013

The Hartford
The Hartford SMART529 The Hartford
The Hartford SMART529 International The Hartford SMART529 The Hartford The Hartford
SMART529 High Inflation Plus 529~ Opportunities 529 SMART529 MidCap Value 529 SMART529 Small SMART529 Equity
Yield 529 Fund Fund Fund MidCap 529 Fund Fund Company 529 Fund  Income 529 Fund
Assets:
Investments in underlying funds, at value *
DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ -3 - % -3 -3 -8 - % -

DFA International Core Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio - - - - - - -
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - - -
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class - - - - - - -
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - 18,922,649
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla - - 10,169,106 - - - -
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, CI - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - 49,532,010 - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y - - - - -
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - 5,774,501 -
The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - - -
Smart529 Stable Value Fund - - - - - - -
The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y 8,479,497 - - - - - -
The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y -
The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Bond Market i Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Total investments 8,479,497 10,646,209 10,169,106 49,532,010 8,895,528 5,774,501 18,922,649
Receivables for units and securities sold 2,621 6,339 4,815 19,132 12,813 2,309 10,210
Dividends receivable 42,979 - - - - - -
Other assets - - - - - - -
Total assets 8,525,097 10,652,548 10,173,921 49,551,142 8,908,341 5,776,810 18,932,859
Liabilities:
Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 2,326 6,167 4,110 17,672 12,519 2,100 7,777
Accrued fees 435 598 515 2,548 425 286 916
Total liabilities 2,761 6,765 4,625 20,220 12,944 2,386 8,693
Net position $ 8,522,336 $ 10,645,783 $ 10,169,296 $ 49,530,922 $ 8,895,397 § 5774424 $ 18,924,166

Net position consists of:
Class A
Net position $ 5924213 $ 7,003,444 $ 6,582,165 $ 30,150,743 $ 7,269,533 $ 3,920,587 $ 12,999,629
Units outstanding 333,721 484,063 734,889 1,159,850 451,370 271,391 821,271
Net position value $ 1775 $ 1447 $ 8.96 $ 26.00 $ 1611 $ 1445 $ 15.83

Class B
Net position $ 430,442 $ 759,684 $ 641,003 $ 3705813 $ 545260 $ 318,230 $ 769,348
Units outstanding 25,431 55,118 74,279 150,634 34,713 22,914 51,439
Net position value $ 16.93 $ 1378 $ 863 $ 2460 $ 1571 $ 1389 $ 14.96

Class C
Net position $ 1,359,605 $ 2,286,702 $ 1,571,019 $ 8,149,753 $ 695,248 $ 800,941 $ 2,556,609
Units outstanding 81,819 168,779 184,354 337,712 44,662 58,337 174,326
Net position value $ 1662 $ 1355 §$ 852 $ 2413 $ 1557 § 1373 $ 14.67

Class D
Net position $ - $ -8 -3 -8 -8 - $ -
Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

ClassE
Net position $ 808,076 $ 595,953 $ 1,375,109 $ 7524613 $ 385,356 $ 734,666 $ 2,598,580
Units outstanding 44,418 40,093 151,085 280,658 23,679 50,119 159,181
Net position value $ 1819 $ 1486 $ 9.10 $ 2681 $ 16.27 $ 1466 $ 16.32

* |dentified cost $ 8,004,922 $ 10,962,667 _$ 8,727,620 $ 43,144,168 $ 6,129,350 $ 4,493,273 $ 13,131,570
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2013

The Hartford
SMART529 Total The Hartford SMARTS529 Select 1- SMART529 Select SMART529 Select  SMART529 Select  SMART529 Select
RetumBond529 SMART529 Value Year Fixed DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA
Fund 529 Fund Portfolio Portfolio 0-3 Portfolio 4-6 Portfolio 7-9 Portfolio 10-12
Assets:
Investments in underlying funds, at value *
DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ -8 -8 -8 738,980 $ 1,147,498 $ 1,052,694 $ -
DFA International Core Equity Portfolio - - - 2,916,626 4,528,975 5,639,735 4,050,776

DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio - - - 10,947,393 19,784,986 21,088,169 16,186,230
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - - -
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class - - - - - - -
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, CI - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y - -
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y - 3,681,506 - - - - -
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -

DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - 1,417,931 1,734,379 3,709,041
DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - 1,416,794 3,465,979 5,732,154
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio - - 4,704,838 - - - 2,023,113
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio - - - - - 1,734,379 2,027,826

Smart529 Stable Value Fund - - - - -
The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y 24,850,324 - - - - - -
The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y -

The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Bond Market i Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -

Total investments 24,850,324 3,681,506 4,704,838 14,602,999 28,296,184 34,615,335 33,729,140
Receivables for units and securities sold 52,515 532 25,625 28,585 4,300 3,723 41,487
Dividends receivable 59,164 - - - - - -
Other assets - - - - - - -
Total assets 24,962,003 3,682,038 4,730,463 14,631,584 28,300,484 34,619,058 33,770,627
Liabilities:
Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 51,914 533 25,625 28,585 4,301 3,723 41,487
Accrued fees 1,330 183 183 563 1,093 1,338 1,305
Total liabilities 53,244 716 25,808 29,148 5,394 5,061 42,792
Net position $ 24,908,759 $ 3,681,322 $ 4,704,655 $ 14,602,436 $ 28,295,090 $ 34,613,997 $ 33,727,835

Net position consists of:

Class A

Net position $ 17,357,852 $ 2,718,792 $ -8 -3 -8 -8 -

Units outstanding 1,064,620 233,016 - - - - -
Net position value $ 16.30 $ 1167 $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
Class B

Net position $ 1521317 $ 191543 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Units outstanding 99,005 17,032 - - - - -
Net position value $ 1537 $ 1125 $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - $ -
Class C

Net position $ 4,432,879 $ 475,556 $ -8 -3 -8 -8 -

Units outstanding 294,484 42,809 - - - - -
Net position value $ 15.05 $ 1111 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Class D

Net position $ - $ - $ 4,704,655 $ 14,602,436 $ 28,295,090 $ 34,613,997 $ 33,727,835

Units outstanding - - 399,303 838,843 1,629,506 2,029,541 2,092,497
Net position value $ - $ - $ 1178 $ 1741 $ 1736 $ 17.06 $ 16.12
ClassE

Net position $ 1,596,711 $ 295431 $ -8 -3 -8 -3 -

Units outstanding 94,929 24,911 - - - - -
Net position value $ 16.82 $ 1186 $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ o
* Identified cost $ 24,656,760 $ 3,204,823 $ 4,713,052 $ 12,561,660 $ 22,675,923 $ 28,905,667 $ 30,038,089
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Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2013
SMART529 Select SMART529 Select  SMARTS29 Select  SMART529 Select  SMARTS529 Select  SMARTS529 Select  SMART529 Select

Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA  Aggressive Growth All Equity DFA Balanced DFA Conservative DFA
Portfolio 13-15 Portfolio 16-18 Portfolio 19+ DFA Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio

Assets:

Investments in underlying funds, at value *
DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ -8 -8 -8 1,103,281 $ 5467,505 $ -8 .
DFA International Core Equity Portfolio 2,590,052 1,801,103 400,507 4,354,458 12,890,240 697,998 210,982
DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio 10,346,186 7,192,761 1,599,611 16,304,348 49,498,933 2,787,422 842,665
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - - -
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class - - - - - - -
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla - - - - - - -
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, CI - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio 3,171,493 3,863,135 2,006,249 - - 854,692 1,056,866
DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio 6,337,903 6,430,923 3,006,962 - - 1,708,014 1,584,028
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio 3,171,493 3,858,554 2,006,249 - - 854,692 1,056,866
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio 3,171,493 2,577,777 1,003,124 - - 854,692 528,433
Smart529 Stable Value Fund - - - - -
The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - - -
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Bond Market i Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - - -

Total investments 28,788,620 25,724,253 10,022,702 21,762,087 67,856,678 7,757,510 5,279,840

Receivables for units and securities sold 3,534 20,903 299 2,805 90,300 162 168

Dividends receivable - - - -

Other assets - - - - - - -
Total assets 28,792,154 25,745,156 10,023,001 21,764,892 67,946,978 7,757,672 5,280,008

Liabilities:

Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 3,535 20,563 300 2,804 90,300 162 168

Accrued fees 1,112 995 387 842 2,622 300 204
Total liabilities 4,647 21,558 687 3,646 92,922 462 372

Net position $ 28,787,507 _$ 25,723,598 $ 10,022,314 $ 21,761,246 $ 67,854,056 $ 7,757,210 $ 5,279,636

Net position consists of:
Class A
Net position $ -8 -3 -8 -3 -8 -3 -
Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ -

Class B
Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Units outstanding - N - b - - -
Net position value $ - $ -3 - $ - 3 - 8 - $ -

Class C
Net position $ -3 -3 -8 -3 -8 -8 -
Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Class D
Net position $ 28,787,507 $ 25723598 $ 10,022,314 $ 21,761,246 $ 67,854,056 $ 7,757,210 $ 5,279,636
Units outstanding 1,863,849 1,700,712 699,618 1,251,056 3,777,853 503,322 369,064
Net position value $ 1545 $ 1513 $ 1433 $ 1739 $ 17.96 $ 1541 $ 1431

ClassE
Net position $ -8 -3 -8 -3 -8 -3 -
Units outstanding - - - - - - -
Net position value $ - 3 - $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ -

* |dentified cost $ 26,786,478 $ 24,569,689 $ 9,946,477 $ 15,711,791 $ 49,008,763 $ 7,135394 $ 5,169,038
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Schedules of Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2013

SMART529 Select  SMART529 Select
SMART529 Select SMART529 Select  SMARTS529 Select Moderately Moderately SMART529 MFS
Fixed Income DFA Growth DFA Moderate Growth ~ Aggressive Growth Conservative DFA  Global Equity 529
Portfolio Portfolio DFA Portfolio DFA Portfolio Portfolio Fund

Assets:

Investments in underlying funds, at value *
DFA Emerging Markets Core Equity Portfolio $ - $ 617,269 $ - $ 303,045 $ - $ -
DFA International Core Equity Portfolio - 3,294,770 1,510,155 1,196,066 301,856 -
DFA Us Core 2 Equity Portfolio - 12,551,510 6,050,862 5,225,337 1,205,588 -
MFS Global Equity, Class A - - - - - 12,472,736
The Hartford Alternative Strategies Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Capital Appreciation Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Dividend And Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Emerging Markets Research Fund, Class - - - - - -
The Hartford Equity Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Global All Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Global Real Asset Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Growth Opportunities Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford International Opportunities Fund, Cla - - - - - -
The Hartford International Small Company Fund, Cl - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Midcap Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Small Company Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Smallcap Growth Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Value Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - -
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - -
DFA Five-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio 5,717,790 1,028,782 1,381,739 374,464 648,034 -
DFA Intermediate Government Fixed Income Portfolio - 2,057,564 2,137,134 374,164 1,079,192 -
DFA One Year Fixed Income Portfolio 1,905,930 - 753,676 - 648,034 -
DFA Two-Year Global Fixed Income Portfolio 1,905,930 1,028,782 753,676 - 432,023 -
Smart529 Stable Value Fund - - - - - -
The Hartford Balanced Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford High Yield Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Inflation Plus Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Strategic Income Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Total Return Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford Unconstrained Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
The Hartford World Bond Fund, Class Y - - - - - -
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund - Institutional - - - - - -
Vanguard Total Bond Market i Index Fund - Institutional - - - - - -

Total investments 9,529,650 20,578,677 12,587,242 7,473,076 4,314,727 12,472,736

Receivables for units and securities sold 2,672 26,605 51,064 1,417 211 15,178

Dividends receivable - - - - - -

Other assets - - - - - -
Total assets 9,532,322 20,605,282 12,638,306 7,474,493 4,314,938 12,487,914

Liabilities:

Payable for units redeemed and securities purchased 2,672 26,604 51,063 1,417 211 14,942

Accrued fees 368 797 487 289 166 649
Total liabilities 3,040 27,401 51,550 1,706 377 15,591

Net position $ 9,529,282 $ 20,577,881 $ 12,586,756 $ 7,472,787 $ 4,314,561 $ 12,472,323

Net position consists of:
Class A
Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 7,366,556
Units outstanding - - - - - 440,656
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 16.72

Class B
Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 800,154
Units outstanding - - - - - 50,644
Net position value $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 15.80

Class C
Net position $ -3 -8 -3 -8 -8 2,297,909
Units outstanding - - - - - 148,296
Net position value $ - $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 15.50

Class D
Net position $ 9,529,282 $ 20,577,881 $ 12,586,756 $ 7,472,787 $ 4,314,561 $ -
Units outstanding 754,619 1,203,772 781,717 429,307 285,626 -
Net position value $ 1263 $ 17.09 $ 16.10 $ 1741 $ 1511 $ -

Class E
Net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,007,704
Units outstanding - - - - - 116,627
Net position value $ -3 - $ - 3 - 8 -3 17.21

* Identified cost $ 9,651,247 $ 16,242,471 $ 11,039,782 $ 5,749,126 $ 4,163,949 $ 9,179,266
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2013

SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV
Direct Age-Based  Direct Age-Based  Direct Age-Based

Portfolio 0-8 Portfolio 9-13 Portfolio 14-15
Investment income:
Dividends and capital gains from underlying funds $ 473370 $ 542,954 $ 208,946
Total investment income 473,370 542,954 208,946
Expenses:
Management and distribution fees - - -
Administration fees 48,661 52,998 19,371
Total expenses 48,661 52,998 19,371
Net Investment Income (Loss) 424,709 489,956 189,575
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of underlying fund shares 2,462,501 2,300,861 625,131
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on underlying fund shares (148,296) (280,982) (88,810)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 2,314,205 2,019,879 536,321
Net increase (decrease) in net position resulting from operations 2,738,914 2,509,835 725,896
Unit transactions:
Contributions
Class A - - -
Class B - - -
Class C - - -
Class D 4,980,885 3,034,911 741,341
Class E - - -
Net proceeds from sale of units to account holders 4,980,885 3,034,911 741,341
Redemptions
Class A - - -
Class B - - -
Class C - - -
Class D (239,690) (158,918) (17,139)
Class E - - -
Total cost of units redeemed (239,690) (158,918) (17,139)
Transfers/Exchanges
Class A - - -
Class B - - -
Class C - - -
Class D (4,523,850) (590,634) 585,280
Class E - - -
Total transfers/exchanges (4,523,850) (590,634) 585,280
Net increase (decrease) in net position derived from unit transactions 217,345 2,285,359 1,309,481
Net position:
Total increase (decrease) in net position 2,956,259 4,795,194 2,035,377
Beginning of year 18,485,576 20,446,977 7,651,181
End of year 21,441,835 $ 25,242,171 $ 9,686,558
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SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV
Direct Age-Based  Direct Age-Based Direct Conservative Direct Conservative Direct Stable Value  Direct Balanced
Portfolio 16-17 Portfolio 18+ Balanced Portfolio Bond Portfolio Fund Portfolio

$ 73,690 $ 96,221 $ 20,023 % 29,873 3% - 202,845

73,690 96,221 20,023 29,873 - 202,845

8,590 11,183 2,402 2,883 6,739 19,959

8,590 11,183 2,402 2,883 6,739 19,959

65,100 85,038 17,621 26,990 (6,739) 182,887

287,361 463,786 101,769 77,007 234,679 1,048,895

76,607 (64,792) (13,749) (75,208) (11,948) (281,336)

363,968 398,994 88,020 1,799 222,731 767,559

429,068 484,032 105,641 28,789 215,992 950,446

680,711 1,604,112 515,793 700,373 3,107,936 890,525

680,711 1,604,112 515,793 700,373 3,107,936 890,525

(194,357) (4,018,752) (303,858) (558,388) (3,243,920) (929,595)

(194,357) (4,018,752) (303,858) (558,388) (3,243,920) (929,595)

199,364 4,574,643 (55,782) 152,790 727,597 23,021

199,364 4,574,643 (55,782) 152,790 727,597 23,021

685,719 2,160,003 156,153 294,776 591,613 (16,050)

1,114,787 2,644,035 261,794 323,565 807,605 934,396

7,594,213 11,750,385 2,532,548 2,818,004 10,461,997 8,497,917

$ 8,709,000 14,394,420 $ 2,794,342 % 3,141,569 $ 11,269,602 9,432,313
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Investment income:
Dividends and capital gains from underlying funds
Total investment income
Expenses:
Management and distribution fees
Administration fees
Total expenses
Net Investment Income (Loss)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of underlying fund shares
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on underlying fund shares
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)
Net increase (decrease) in net position resulting from operations
Unit transactions:
Contributions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Net proceeds from sale of units to account holders
Redemptions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total cost of units redeemed
Transfers/Exchanges
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total transfers/exchanges
Net increase (decrease) in net position derived from unit transactions

Net position:
Total increase (decrease) in net position
Beginning of year
End of year

SMART529 WV SMART529 WV SMART529 WV
Direct Growth Direct Aggressive Direct 500 Index
Portfolio Growth Portfolio Fund
$ 298,421 $ 396,500 $ 122,514
298,421 396,500 122,514
30,325 43,904 14,505
30,325 43,904 14,505
268,096 352,596 108,009
1,926,019 2,747,520 1,038,765
(494,856) 24,352 (142,714)
1,431,163 2,771,872 896,051
1,699,259 3,124,468 1,004,060
1,268,888 1,932,694 1,015,414
1,268,888 1,932,694 1,015,414
(972,420) (803,865) (264,195)
(972,420) (803,865) (264,195)
147,416 (734,933) (481,750)
147,416 (734,933) (481,750)
443,884 393,896 269,468
2,143,143 3,518,364 1,273,528
11,609,008 16,432,348 4,653,479
$ 13,752,151 $ 19,950,712 $ 5,927,007
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The Hartford The Hartford The Hartford

The Hartford The Hartford SMART529 Age- SMART529 Age- The Hartford SMART529

SMART529 Age- SMARTS529 Age- Based Portfolio 14- Based Portfolio 16- SMARTS529 Age- Conservative

Based Portfolio 0-8 Based Portfolio 9-13 15 17 Based Portfolio 18+ Balanced Portfolio

$ 6,707,544 $ 9,735,039 $ 3,882,140 $ 1,482,806 $ 1,131,464 $ 83,601
6,707,544 9,735,039 3,882,140 1,482,806 1,131,464 83,601
650,433 979,152 410,924 397,424 489,424 18,544
397,559 632,320 257,794 235,429 278,928 13,338
1,047,992 1,611,472 668,718 632,853 768,352 31,882
5,659,552 8,123,567 3,213,422 849,953 363,112 51,719
18,677,921 21,331,526 6,528,298 3,651,450 4,590,899 200,362
(1,642,053) (3,162,893) (2,027,452) (138,679) (2,083,207) (18,578)
17,035,868 18,168,633 4,500,846 3,512,771 2,507,692 181,784
22,695,420 26,292,200 7,714,268 4,362,724 2,870,804 233,503
22,461,263 22,635,895 7,467,893 5,722,337 5,573,468 581,379

1,847,979 1,847,687 596,127 545,259 385,953 -
4,561,609 3,637,875 2,108,625 2,187,139 2,127,286 297,882
1,209,249 1,073,720 329,221 310,864 362,573 12,831
30,080,100 29,095,177 10,501,866 8,765,599 8,449,281 892,092
(3,700,249) (5,574,801) (1,850,704) (2,906,128) (23,438,960) (524,152)

(2,169,227) (8,015,886) (2,530,643) (2,363,257) (5,207,581) -
(812,937) (1,027,171) (248,601) (505,550) (7,773,078) (82,370)
(248,623) (470,557) (236,069) (386,104) (2,100,325) (14,987)
(6,931,036) (15,088,414) (4,866,017) (6,161,040) (38,519,945) (621,509)
(31,645,182) (5,306,294) 2,897,341 2,029,551 31,538,813 1,707,135

(6,500,742) 1,106,254 729,084 537,214 4,350,365 -
(5,117,704) (1,653,781) (1,327,936) (46,446) 7,923,792 261,186
(2,779,976) 1,009,877 (702,832) 1,020,645 1,898,395 45,986
(46,043,604) (4,843,944) 1,595,656 3,540,964 45,711,365 2,014,307
(22,894,540) 9,162,818 7,231,505 6,145,524 15,640,701 2,284,890
(199,120) 35,455,018 14,945,773 10,508,248 18,511,505 2,518,393
157,812,483 230,005,974 92,123,407 88,959,796 104,373,475 4,009,254
3$ 157,613,363 $ 265,460,992 $ 107,069,180 $ 99,468,044 $ 122,884,980 $ 6,527,647
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

The Hartford The Hartford
The Hartford SMART529 SMART529
SMART529 Stable  Aggressive Growth  Balanced Income
Value Fund Portfolio Portfolio
Investment income:
Dividends and capital gains from underlying funds $ - 3 2,242,986 $ 88,228
Total investment income - 2,242,986 88,228
Expenses:
Management and distribution fees 270,591 225,497 7,813
Administration fees 135,625 145,878 5,314
Total expenses 406,216 371,375 13,127
Net Investment Income (Loss) (406,216) 1,871,611 75,101
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of underlying fund shares 1,115,365 7,233,057 19,205
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on underlying fund shares 136,575 1,346,133 (13,368)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 1,251,940 8,579,190 5,837
Net increase (decrease) in net position resulting from operations 845,724 10,450,801 80,938
Unit transactions:
Contributions
Class A 3,689,122 3,602,256 3,161,929
Class B 210,635 488,917 -
Class C 2,620,461 522,225 631,598
Class D - - -
Class E 456,494 815,281 23,502
Net proceeds from sale of units to account holders 6,976,712 5,428,679 3,817,029
Redemptions
Class A (6,953,741) (2,489,141) (133,247)
Class B (1,758,222) (1,855,258) -
Class C (4,307,781) (668,782) (34,127)
Class D - - -
Class E (1,190,000) (500,477) (114,440)
Total cost of units redeemed (14,209,743) (5,513,658) (281,814)
Transfers/Exchanges
Class A 4,965,689 (1,307,766) 1,017,601
Class B 426,601 (210,694) -
Class C 921,191 (579,894) 342,678
Class D - - -
Class E 1,087,354 (476,975) 443,701
Total transfers/exchanges 7,400,834 (2,575,329) 1,803,981
Net increase (decrease) in net position derived from unit transactions 167,802 (2,660,308) 5,339,196
Net position:
Total increase (decrease) in net position 1,013,526 7,790,493 5,420,134
Beginning of year 59,787,200 54,085,734 189,877
End of year $ 60,800,726 $ 61,876,227 $ 5,610,011
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The Hartford The Hartford The Hartford
The Hartford The Hartford SMART529 Checks SMART529 Capital SMART529 The Hartford
SMART529 SMART529 Growth and Balances Appreciation 529 Dividend and SMART529 Global
Balanced Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Fund Growth 529 Fund  All Asset 529 Fund
$ 1,903,976 $ 3,472,528 $ 1,030,283 $ 1,001,040 $ 2,320,374 $ 16,692
1,903,976 3,472,528 1,030,283 1,001,040 2,320,374 16,692
216,560 349,959 103,680 374,278 234,060 2,185
124,665 208,719 74,553 242,068 162,161 1,518
341,225 558,678 178,233 616,346 396,221 3,703
1,562,751 2,913,850 852,050 384,694 1,924,153 12,989
4,438,640 9,048,385 1,433,985 1,080,498 636,774 8,667
(841,162) (254,510) 2,358,058 25,154,090 9,732,635 10,258
3,597,478 8,793,875 3,792,043 26,234,588 10,369,409 18,925
5,160,229 11,707,725 4,644,093 26,619,282 12,293,562 31,914
4,105,980 5,473,743 2,294,555 5,556,430 3,795,518 91,725
189,498 402,182 76,840 550,015 217,119 -
1,206,496 1,421,599 529,802 982,084 799,833 79,833
262,039 330,561 146,705 896,888 274,859 33,206
5,764,013 7,628,085 3,047,901 7,985,417 5,087,329 204,764
(3,841,211) (4,521,127) (3,207,477) (5,275,294) (4,504,681) (74,603)
(1,306,128) (2,363,609) (605,085) (2,285,801) (1,287,585) -
(1,468,137) (1,480,057) (324,666) (1,203,855) (770,749) (555)
(393,669) (372,874) (208,141) (883,249) (296,359) (1,175)
(7,009,145) (8,737,667) (4,345,369) (9,648,198) (6,859,375) (76,333)
1,323,613 (1,981,247) (238,784) (3,385,098) (1,282,745) 51,248
115,231 (107,954) (92,515) (273,221) 13,474 -
891,932 (559,656) (94,707) (681,128) (31,054) 12,430
(98,659) (56,331) 12,466 (1,205,334) (238,427) 58,919
2,232,118 (2,705,188) (413,540) (5,544,781) (1,538,752) 122,596
986,986 (3,814,771) (1,711,008) (7,207,562) (3,310,798) 251,027
6,147,215 7,892,954 2,933,085 19,411,720 8,982,764 282,941
46,715,374 79,758,015 28,486,975 88,778,899 61,428,713 441,630
3$ 52,862,589 $ 87,650,969 $ 31,420,060 $ 108,190,619 $ 70,411,477 $ 724,571
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Investment income:
Dividends and capital gains from underlying funds
Total investment income
Expenses:
Management and distribution fees
Administration fees
Total expenses
Net Investment Income (Loss)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of underlying fund shares
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on underlying fund shares
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)
Net increase (decrease) in net position resulting from operations
Unit transactions:
Contributions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Net proceeds from sale of units to account holders
Redemptions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total cost of units redeemed
Transfers/Exchanges
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total transfers/exchanges
Net increase (decrease) in net position derived from unit transactions

Net position:
Total increase (decrease) in net position
Beginning of year
End of year

The Hartford The Hartford
SMART529 Growth The Hartford SMART529
Opportunities 529 ~ SMART529 High Inflation Plus 529
Fund Yield 529 Fund Fund
$ - $ 501,538 $ 439,354
- 501,538 439,354
23,912 32,671 50,100
16,077 21,797 28,867
39,989 54,468 78,967
(39,989) 447,070 360,387
74,385 243,178 236,924
1,126,048 (88,607) (1,271,325)
1,200,433 154,571 (1,034,401)
1,160,444 601,641 (674,014)
506,684 701,954 917,457
18,691 11,721 27,494
105,899 186,538 349,864
165,542 119,730 112,001
796,817 1,019,943 1,406,816
(252,109) (869,224) (635,524)
(108,586) (172,414) (274,025)
(90,283) (140,812) (343,540)
(26,074) (135,354) (62,433)
(477,052) (1,317,804) (1,315,523)
78,710 (73,240) 141,793
77,810 2,903 7,294
61,980 (47,307) 100,802
(75,685) 149,254 (115,554)
142,814 31,610 134,334
462,580 (266,252) 225,627
1,623,024 335,389 (448,387)
5,582,105 8,186,947 11,094,170
$ 7,205,129 $ 8,522,336 $ 10,645,783
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The Hartford

SMART529 The Hartford The Hartford
International The Hartford SMART529 The Hartford The Hartford SMART529 Total
Opportunities 529 SMART529 MidCap Value 529 SMART529 Small SMARTS529 Equity  Return Bond 529
Fund MidCap 529 Fund Fund Company 529 Fund  Income 529 Fund Fund

$ 155,792 $ 2,628,124 $ 117,784 $ 300,522 $ 628,078 $ 1,520,386
155,792 2,628,124 117,784 300,522 628,078 1,520,386
35,942 172,961 27,332 18,462 57,145 105,238
24,463 113,452 20,499 12,874 41,646 65,087
60,405 286,413 47,831 31,336 98,791 170,325
95,387 2,341,711 69,953 269,186 529,287 1,350,061
368,167 (407,454) 337,242 67,385 454,349 103,709
822,392 8,101,331 1,568,496 745,956 2,237,165 (1,430,479)
1,190,559 7,693,877 1,905,738 813,341 2,691,514 (1,326,770)
1,285,946 10,035,588 1,975,691 1,082,527 3,220,801 23,291
617,126 2,191,003 682,921 313,949 1,248,511 1,336,520
35,550 145,096 15,964 8,567 34,451 100,901
168,970 386,900 106,988 66,486 288,635 398,499
235,001 403,045 41,495 94,545 195,231 144,501
1,056,647 3,126,045 847,368 483,547 1,766,827 1,980,421
(525,798) (2,116,900) (714,593) (264,839) (1,017,903) (2,324,184)
(134,915) (1,164,877) (154,132) (142,712) (327,769) (432,361)
(113,808) (706,062) (116,457) (52,992) (211,476) (572,111)
(64,996) (437,057) (11,382) (23,322) (166,918) (211,644)
(839,518) (4,424,896) (996,564) (483,864) (1,724,066) (3,540,300)
(177,522) (954,662) (497,347) (129,992) 559,324 645,525
(8,311) (59,434) (7,579) (42,502) (35,062) 27,183
(71,610) (280,978) (23,098) 19,256 133,667 (104,670)
(56,423) (369,949) 47,962 13,181 59,605 72,234
(313,866) (1,665,022) (480,062) (140,057) 717,533 640,273
(96,737) (2,963,873) (629,257) (140,374) 760,294 (919,607)
1,189,209 7,071,715 1,346,434 942,153 3,981,095 (896,316)
8,980,087 42,459,207 7,548,963 4,832,271 14,943,071 25,805,075
3$ 10,169,296 $ 49,530,922 $ 8,895,397 $ 5,774,424 $ 18,924,166 $ 24,908,759
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program
Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

The Hartford SMART529 Select 1- SMART529 Select
SMART529 Value Year Fixed DFA Age-Based DFA
529 Fund Portfolio Portfolio 0-3
Investment income:
Dividends and capital gains from underlying funds $ 250,806 $ 30,819 $ 334,997
Total investment income 250,806 30,819 334,997
Expenses:
Management and distribution fees 11,466 - -
Administration fees 7,768 21,506 62,524
Total expenses 19,234 21,506 62,524
Net Investment Income (Loss) 231,572 9,314 272,473
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of underlying fund shares 63,148 (940) 575,382
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on underlying fund shares 383,531 (7,846) 1,954,850
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) 446,679 (8,786) 2,530,232
Net increase (decrease) in net position resulting from operations 678,251 528 2,802,705
Unit transactions:
Contributions
Class A 302,268 - -
Class B 5,303 - -
Class C 22,892 - -
Class D - 483,525 6,412,202
Class E 56,327 - -
Net proceeds from sale of units to account holders 386,790 483,525 6,412,202
Redemptions
Class A (209,704) - -
Class B (66,090) - -
Class C (23,769) - -
Class D - (1,128,923) (935,395)
Class E (2,935) - -
Total cost of units redeemed (302,499) (1,128,923) (935,395)
Transfers/Exchanges
Class A 24,111 - -
Class B 22,989 - -
Class C 45,034 - -
Class D - 707,961 (5,794,645)
Class E 134,444 - -
Total transfers/exchanges 226,578 707,961 (5,794,645)
Net increase (decrease) in net position derived from unit transactions 310,869 62,563 (317,837)
Net position:
Total increase (decrease) in net position 989,120 63,091 2,484,868
Beginning of year 2,692,202 4,641,564 12,117,568
End of year $ 3,681,322 $ 4,704,655 $ 14,602,436
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SMART529 Select SMART529 Select  SMART529 Select  SMART529 Select  SMART529 Select  SMARTS529 Select
Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA Age-Based DFA

Portfolio 4-6 Portfolio 7-9 Portfolio 10-12 Portfolio 13-15 Portfolio 16-18 Portfolio 19+
$ 673,424 $ 769,293 $ 751,625 $ 587,099 $ 486,338 $ 177,731
673,424 769,293 751,625 587,099 486,338 177,731
124,874 140,317 144,602 120,146 103,497 39,496
124,874 140,317 144,602 120,146 103,497 39,496
548,550 628,976 607,023 466,953 382,841 138,235
2,274,542 919,636 1,170,585 711,411 438,095 160,353
2,215,425 3,395,107 2,194,858 1,205,353 713,158 (6,006)
4,489,967 4,314,743 3,365,443 1,916,764 1,151,253 154,347
5,038,517 4,943,719 3,972,466 2,383,717 1,534,094 292,582
4,849,835 4,227,893 4,325,871 3,014,332 2,824,160 1,097,576
4,849,835 4,227,893 4,325,871 3,014,332 2,824,160 1,097,576
(1,346,297) (753,314) (862,741) (290,813) (1,464,945) (2,697,296)
(1,346,297) (753,314) (862,741) (290,813) (1,464,945) (2,697,296)
(4,969,908) 1,130,491 43,441 1,137,070 4,745,515 4,239,245
(4,969,908) 1,130,491 43,441 1,137,070 4,745,515 4,239,245
(1,466,370) 4,605,070 3,506,571 3,860,589 6,104,730 2,639,524
3,672,147 9,548,789 7,479,037 6,244,306 7,638,824 2,932,106
24,722,943 25,065,208 26,248,798 22,543,201 18,084,774 7,090,208
3$ 28,295,090 $ 34,613,997 $ 33,727,835 $ 28,787,507 $ 25,723,598 $ 10,022,314
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Investment income:
Dividends and capital gains from underlying funds
Total investment income
Expenses:
Management and distribution fees
Administration fees
Total expenses
Net Investment Income (Loss)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of underlying fund shares
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on underlying fund shares
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)
Net increase (decrease) in net position resulting from operations
Unit transactions:
Contributions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Net proceeds from sale of units to account holders
Redemptions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total cost of units redeemed
Transfers/Exchanges
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total transfers/exchanges
Net increase (decrease) in net position derived from unit transactions

Net position:
Total increase (decrease) in net position
Beginning of year
End of year

SMART529 Select

SMART529 Select

SMART529 Select

Aggressive Growth All Equity DFA Balanced DFA
DFA Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio

$ 511,454 $ 1,526,212 $ 162,994
511,454 1,526,212 162,994
92,448 277,784 33,510
92,448 277,784 33,510
419,006 1,248,428 129,484
988,404 2,101,341 322,792
2,673,433 8,523,445 222,379
3,661,837 10,624,786 545,171
4,080,843 11,873,214 674,655
1,817,346 7,969,266 1,274,290
1,817,346 7,969,266 1,274,290
(556,547) (1,639,383) (795,149)
(556,547) (1,639,383) (795,149)
(1,374,325) (960,890) (51,520)
(1,374,325) (960,890) (51,520)
(113,525) 5,368,993 427,620
3,967,318 17,242,207 1,102,275
17,793,928 50,611,849 6,654,935
$ 21,761,246 $ 67,854,056 $ 7,757,210
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SMART529 Select

SMARTS529 Select

SMART529 Select SMART529 Select SMART529 Select  SMART529 Select Moderately Moderately
Conservative DFA  Fixed Income DFA Growth DFA Moderate Growth ~ Aggressive Growth Conservative DFA
Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio DFA Portfolio DFA Portfolio Portfolio
$ 101,020 $ 151,327 $ 452,424 % 261,308 $ 190,553 $ 88,716

101,020 151,327 452,424 261,308 190,553 88,716
22,493 38,088 84,416 50,964 33,827 18,521
22,493 38,088 84,416 50,964 33,827 18,521
78,527 113,239 368,008 210,344 156,726 70,195
74,732 (17,476) 826,169 540,559 646,341 203,791
24,642 (98,458) 1,798,905 622,805 577,310 15,978
99,374 (115,934) 2,625,074 1,163,364 1,223,651 219,769

177,901 (2,695) 2,993,082 1,373,708 1,380,377 289,964

772,820 1,661,051 3,433,796 1,968,497 1,122,248 803,378

772,820 1,661,051 3,433,796 1,968,497 1,122,248 803,378

(463,382) (1,610,320) (460,760) (803,880) (672,427) (353,045)
(463,382) (1,610,320) (460,760) (803,880) (672,427) (353,045)

251,269 2,155,345 (878,604) 675,632 (941,414) (30,087)

251,269 2,155,345 (878,604) 675,632 (941,414) (30,087)

560,707 2,206,076 2,094,431 1,840,248 (491,594) 420,246

738,608 2,203,381 5,087,513 3,213,956 888,783 710,210

4,541,028 7,325,901 15,490,368 9,372,800 6,584,004 3,604,351
$ 5,279,636 9,529,282 $ 20,577,881 $ 12,586,756 $ 7472787 $ 4,314,561
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West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition and Savings Program

Savings Plan Trust Fund

Schedules of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Investment income:
Dividends and capital gains from underlying funds
Total investment income
Expenses:
Management and distribution fees
Administration fees
Total expenses
Net Investment Income (Loss)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of underlying fund shares
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on underlying fund shares
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)
Net increase (decrease) in net position resulting from operations
Unit transactions:
Contributions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Net proceeds from sale of units to account holders
Redemptions
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total cost of units redeemed
Transfers/Exchanges
Class A
Class B
Class C
Class D
Class E
Total transfers/exchanges
Net increase (decrease) in net position derived from unit transactions

Net position:
Total increase (decrease) in net position
Beginning of year
End of year

SMART529 MFS
Global Equity 529
Fund

$ 141,612

141,612

45,474
29,079

74,553

67,059

231,057
2,086,336

2,317,393

2,384,452

575,089
34,322
113,505

137,928

860,844

(510,644)
(241,927)
(167,663)

(114,364)

(1,034,598)

10,944
(36,727)
(82,153)

(50,619)

(158,556)

(332,310)

2,052,142
10,420,181

$ 12,472,323
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Statistical Section

The Statistical Section presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and supplemental information says about the Program’s overall financial health.
The following two categories of information provide tables of schedules and other
information to better understand the Program and its operations.

Financial Trends — Tables 1 & 2
These tables contain trend data to help the reader understand how

the Program’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

Demographic and Economic Information — Tables 3 — 10
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the
Program’s financial activities take place.

Informational Tables
and Charts
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Table 1: Net (Deficit) Position and Changes in Net (Deficit) Position —

Enterprise Funds

The enterprise funds
began operations in
July 1997. Activity
during the first year
of operations
consisted of
appropriations from
the state and start-up
costs. Activity in the
ensuing years
included revenues
from contracts and
investments, and
expenses related to
the tuition benefit
liability. Revenue
from the Savings
Plan administrative
fee began with the
Savings Plan’s first
full year of
operations in 2004.
Tuition contract
revenues went down
in 2004 because the
Prepaid Tuition Plan
was closed to new
contract sales during
that fiscal year after
an abbreviated
enrollment period.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

In Thousands

2013 2012 2011

Changes in Net (Deficit) Position
Operating revenues
Tuition contracts $ 42 3% 8% $ 103
Savings Plan administrative fee 1,093 1,016 947
Total operating revenues 1,135 1,101 1,050
Operating expenses
Tuition contract benefits and expenses 3,835 5,968 4,179
General and administrative expenses 1,232 1,153 905
Total operating expenses 5,067 7,121 5,084
Operating (loss) gain (3,932 (6,020) (4,034)
Nonoperating revenues (losses)
Investment earnings (losses) 6,781 1,634 14,511
Appropriations from

primary government 147 147 144
Other postemployment benefits

contributions - - -
Total nonoperating revenues (losses) 6,928 1,781 14,655
Change in net (deficit) position $ 29% $ (4239 $ 10621

Net (Deficit) Position at Year-End
Restricted for payment of general

and administrative expenses $ 575 % 481  $ 324
Unrestricted (13,357) (16,259) (11,863)
Total net (deficit) position $ (12,782) $ (15778) $ (11,539)
Restatement of Beginning Net (Deficit ) Position
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle $ - $ - $ -
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In Thousands

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$ () $ (@) s 58 $ 150 $ 397 $ 632 $ 357
778 609 848 873 659 454 251
734 565 906 1,023 1,056 1,086 608
8,165 (3,940) 8,674 13,855 7,342 4,296 9,064
887 895 852 597 494 460 523
9,052 (3,045) 9,526 14,452 7,836 4,756 9,587
(8,318) 3,610 (8,620) (13,429) (6,780) (3,670) (8,979)
12,199 (12,631) (6,411) 16,044 8,019 8,704 10,554
131 157 153 151 150 148 148
- 10 6 - - - -
12,330 (12,464) (6,252) 16,195 8,169 8,852 10,702
$ 4012 $ (8854 $ (14872) $ 2766 $ 1389 $ 5182 $ 1723
$ 97 $ 976 $ 109%5 $ 81 $ 465 $ 150 $ 6
(23,157) (27,148) (18,413) (3,385) (5,725) (6,798) (11,837)
$ (22160) $ (26172) $ (17318) $ (2494 $ (5260) $ (6648 $ (11,831
$ - $ 48 $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ -

- 109 -



W.Va. College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Table 2: Changes in Net (Deficit) Position — Fiduciary Fund

The fiduciary fund began operations during the last four months of fiscal year 2002. The table
below presents additions and deductions and changes in net position for each fiscal year since
inception.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
In Thousands

2013 2012 2011 2010

Additions
Contributions:

Account holders $ 215,988 $ 218,740 $ 609,702 $ 303,060

Deposits to establish new investment funds - 135 220 138
Total contributions 215,988 218,875 609,922 303,198
Investment earnings:

Net increase (decrease) in fair value

of investments 174,377 (39,880) 243,137 105,197

Dividends and capital gains 51,505 37,488 20,743 16,563

Investment expense 5,311 4,935 4,889 4,248
Net investment earnings 220,571 (7,327) 258,991 117,512
Total additions 436,559 211,548 868,913 420,710
Deductions
Redemptions:

Payments in acordance with trust agreements 173,745 154,837 486,947 201,806

Redemptions of deposits to establish

new investment funds 121 82 - -

Total redemptions 173,866 154,919 486,947 201,806
Administrative expense 4,968 4,331 3,956 3,192
Total deductions 178,834 159,250 490,903 204,998
Change in net (deficit) position $ 2657725 $ 52298 $ 378010 $ 215712
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30
In Thousands

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$ 267,563 $ 264,646 $ 200,030 $ 213,129 $ 174744  $ 193,423

138 138 80 - 85 204
267,701 264,784 200,110 213,129 174,829 193,627
(255,398) (159,859) 105,264 28,959 27,620 34,119
19,781 87,264 56,201 38,007 7,482 3,481
3,504 4,878 4,973 3,748 2,543 1,335
(239,121) (77,473) 156,582 64,118 32,559 36,265
28,580 187,311 356,692 277,247 207,388 229,892
159,503 137,408 52,172 63,874 20,769 7,677
- - - 125 140 119
159,503 137,408 52,172 63,999 20,909 7,796
2,467 3,307 3,043 2,196 1,459 779
161,970 140,715 55,215 66,195 22,368 8,575

$ (133390) $ 46,59 $ 301,477 $ 211,052 $ 185020  $ 221,317
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Table 3: Types of Prepaid Tuition Plan Contracts

Contracts are held in units, which represent a semester of college studies. The chart illustrates
the number of contracts with units remaining to be used as of June 30, 2013.

Contracts 1,981
2,000
1,800
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000

800
600
400

305

lorless I+to2 2+to3 3+tod 4+tod 35+tob 6+to7 T+tod 8+t0?d 9+t 10

Contract Units Remaining

Purchasers chose either to make a lump sum payment for a contract or to select among monthly
payment options.

Lump Sum
Plans, 44%
@ Monthly
Payment
Plans, 56%

Source: West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program
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Table 4: Prepaid Tuition Plan Beneficiaries

Grade ©

P 650

Grade 8

Grade 7

Grade 6

Grade 5

Grade 4

Grade 3

Grade 2

Grade 1

Kindergarten

Age 4 ) 539

i

Age 3

e

s
=l
oy
B}
N

Age

g
—
=
n
W
(o)}

ze
| \ \ | \

Infant

y i |

Newborn

1

I I I T T T T
200 300 400 500 600

700

1
800

Purchasers selected plans based on beneficiary age and grade during the enrollment period.
This chart shows the distribution of plans by age and grade at the time of contract purchase.

Girls 48.3%

Boys 51.7%

Beneficiary distribution by gender

Source: West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program
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Table 5: Prepaid Tuition Plan Students

Distribution of Prepaid Tuition Plan Students in Spring 2013

Schools Students | % of Total
In-state Public Institutions:

Marshall University 175 13.7%
Mountwest Community & Technical College 4 0.3
West Virginia University, Morgantown 460 36.1
West Virginia University Institute of Technology 15 1.2
Bridgemont Community & Technical College 4 0.3
West Virginia University at Parkersburg, Baccalaureate Programs 11 0.8
West Virginia University at Parkersburg, Associate/Certificate Programs 6 0.5
West Virginia University, Potomac State College, Associate/Certificate Programs 7 0.6
Bluefield State College 7 0.5
New River Community & Technical College 9 0.7
Concord University 35 2.7
Fairmont State University 60 4.7
Pierpont Community & Technical College 6 0.5
Glenville State College 15 1.2
Shepherd University 39 3.1
Blue Ridge Community & Technical College 1 0.1
West Liberty University 21 1.7
West Virginia State University 28 2.2
Kanawha Valley Community & Technical College 10 0.8
Southern West Virginia Community & Technical College 4 0.3
West Virginia Northern Community College 5 0.4
922 72.4

In-state Private Institutions:

Alderson-Broaddus College 7 0.6
Bethany College 4 0.3
Davis & Elkins College 6 0.5
University of Charleston 29 2.2
West Virginia Junior College 1 0.1
West Virginia Wesleyan College 36 2.9
Wheeling Jesuit University 9 0.7
Carver Career Center 3 0.2
Charleston School of Beauty Culture 1 0.1
Monongalia County Technical Education Center 1 0.1
St. Mary’s School of Nursing 1 0.1
98 7.8
Out-of-State Institutions 253 19.8

1,273 100.0%

The table above shows the distribution of those students among public and private institutions within the state and institutions out
of the state.

Source: West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program

-114 -



W.Va. College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Table 6: Tuition and Mandatory Fees

The following chart compares tuition and mandatory fees per semester for full-time West
Virginia undergraduates for the academic years 2012-13 and 2013-14.

Increase
2012-13  2013-14 Amount %

Marshall University $295 $ 3108 $ 143 4.82%
Mountwest Community & Technical College 1,524 1,677 153  10.04
West Virginia University:
WV U, Morgantown 3,045 3,228 183 6.01
WVU Institute of Technology 2,779 2,904 125 4.50
Bridgemont Community & Technical College 1,742 1,780 38 2.18
WV U at Parkersburg:
Baccalaureate Degree Programs 1,716 1,871 155 9.03
Associate/Certificate Programs 1,248 1,361 113 9.05
WV U Potomac State College:
Baccalaureate Degree Programs 1,973 2,064 91 4.61
Associate/Certificate Programs 1,589 1,668 79 4,97
Bluefield State College 2,590 2,782 192 7.41
New River Community & Technical College 1,617 1,730 113 6.99
Concord University 2,858 3,001 143 5.00
Fairmont State University 2,663 2,912 249 9.35
Pierpont Community & Technical College 1,930 2,075 145 7.51
Glenville State College 2,930 3,192 262 8.94
Shepherd University 2,917 3,128 211 7.23
Blue Ridge Community & Technical College 1,560 1,560 - -
West Liberty University 2,965 3,113 148 4.99
West Virginia State University 2,721 2,966 245 9.00
Kanawha Valley Community & Technical College 1,618 1,780 162  10.01
Eastern West Virginia Community & Technical College 1,212 1,344 132 10.89
Southern West Virginia Community & Technical College 1,260 1,452 192 15.24
West Virginia Northern Community College 1,273 1,395 122 9.58

Source: West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission
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Table 7: Resident Full-time Undergraduate Enrollment

The following table shows the West Virginia resident full-time undergraduate enroliment for the
fall 2011 and 2012 semesters at all West Virginia accredited post-secondary institutions.

Fall Enroliment % of Total
Increase
Schools (Decrease)| 2011
Marshall University 6,365 6,406 41 145% 15.1%
Mountwest Community & Technical College 1,183 1,081 (102) 2.7 2.5
West Virginia University:
WVU, Morgantown 10,327 9,948 (379) 23.7 23.4
WVU Institute of Technology 813 700 (113) 1.9 1.6
Bridgemont Community & Technical College 479 438 (41) 11 1.0
WVU at Parkersburg:
Baccalaureate Degree Program 482 479 (3) 11 11
Associate/Certificate Programs 2,068 1,811 (257) 4.7 4.2
WVU Potomac State College:
Baccalaureate Degree Program 63 78 15 0.1 0.2
Associate/Certificate Programs 876 877 1 2.0 2.1
Bluefield State College 1,350 1,386 36 3.1 3.3
New River Community & Technical College 1,754 1,662 (92) 4.0 3.9
Concord University 1,880 1,922 42 4.3 4.5
Fairmont State University 3,275 3,183 (92) 7.5 7.5
Pierpont Community & Technical College 1,834 1,801 (33) 4.2 4.2
Glenville State College 970 973 3 2.2 2.3
Shepherd University 2,119 2,102 an 4.8 4.9
Blue Ridge Community & Technical College 1,112 1,004 (18) 2.5 2.6
West Liberty University 1513 1,564 51 35 3.7
West Virginia State University 1,727 1,643 (84) 3.9 3.9
Kanawha Valley Community & Technical College 878 895 17 2.0 2.1
Eastern West Virginia Community & Technical College 286 302 16 0.7 0.7
Southern West Virginia Community & Technical College 1,271 1,311 40 2.9 3.1
West Virginia Northern Community College 1,140 885 (255) 2.6 2.1
Total Resident Full-time Undergraduate Enrollment 43,765 42,541 (1,224) 100.0% 100.0%

Source: West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission
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Table 8: Savings Plan Investment Options

Investment Options

Individual Funds,
19%

N

Stable Value Fund,
4% A\

Static Portfolios,
24%
Age Based

Portfolios, 54%

Product Offerings

SMART529 WV
Direct, 8%

SMART529 Select,

18%

The Hartford
SMART529, 74%

Investors in the Savings Plan choose among a variety of options and products with varying
degrees of risk and features. This chart presents the percentage of those options and offerings

selected at June 30, 2013.

Source: West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program
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Table 9: Savings Plan Top Ten Firms

Top Ten Investing Firms Nationwide Since Inception

Percentof  Number Average

Total of Account
Firm Investments  Investments Accounts Size
Edward Jones $ 444,928,308 21.4% 45,415 $ 9,797
First Clearing Corporation 85,527,578 4.1 7,230 11,830
Woodbury Financial Services 65,979,049 3.2 6,976 9,458
LPL Financial Corporation 58,421,954 2.8 6,353 9,196
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney 58,089,643 2.8 2,606 22,291
BB&T Investment Services Inc. 50,400,120 24 5,396 9,340
Raymond James & Associates Inc. 48,036,989 2.3 4,852 9,900
Huntington Investment Company 24,161,756 1.2 3,020 8,001
Cetera Investment Services 14,345,855 0.7 1,514 9,475
Commonwealth Financial Network 11,311,112 0.5 702 16,113

This table ranks the top ten investment firms nationwide by the total amount of investments each
firm’s clients hold in the Savings Plan at June 30, 2013.

Source: West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program
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Table 10: Savings Plan Top Ten States

Top Ten Investing States Since Inception

Percent of
Total
State of Investor Residence Investments Investments
West Virginia $ 367,745,669 17.7%
California 226,143,972 10.9
Texas 164,282,981 7.9
North Carolina 112,623,470 54
Florida 77,180,781 3.7
Pennsylvania 74,876,908 3.6
Minnesota 72,020,536 3.5
Ilinois 69,361,838 3.3
Tennessee 66,331,830 3.2
Connecticut 62,832,833 3.0

This table ranks the top ten states by the total amount of investments made by their residents into
the Savings Plan as of June 30, 2013. The Savings Plan is open to residents of all states.

Source: West Virginia College Prepaid Tuition & Savings Program
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